
CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU 
GOVERNOR 

June 2, 2021 

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES 

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall 
Concord, NH 03301-3834 
Telephone: (603) 271 -2155 

Fax: (603) 271-2615 

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu 
and the Honorable Council 

State House 
Concord, New Hampshire 0330 I 

REQU ESTIW ACTION 

DIVISION OF PLANNING 

DIVISION OF ENERGY 

www.nh.gov/osi 

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OST) to amend the Contract Agreement (Contract# I 075515) with 
Southwestern Community Services, lnc. (VC # 1775 11 ), Keene, NH, by increasing the contract amount by 
$266,529.00 from $242,960.00 to $509,489.00 for the Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) effective upon 
approval of Governor and Executive Council , through June 30, 2022. The original contract was approved by 
Governor and Counci l on 06/24/2020, item #74. 100% Federal Funds. 

Funding is available in the following account: 

Office of Strategic Initiatives, Fuel Assistance 
01-02-02-0240 I 0-77060000-074-500587 
Grants for Pub Assist & Relief 

EXPLANATION 

FY2021 

$266,529.00 

The U.S. Department of Energy's (US DOE) grant guidance (IO CFR 440.15) gives Community Action 
Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, their role 
providing a range of services to clients eligible for the Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), and their 
historical performance delivering the weatherization program 

OSI is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization Assistance Program, 
funded by a grant from USDOE. The objective of the program is to weatherize homes to reduce energy 
consumption and energy costs in eligible low income households. Priority is given to households that 
include people who are elderly, disab led, or children, and households with high energy usage. OSI contracts 
with New Hampshire 's Community Action Agencies to provide weatherization services at the local level. 
OSI estimates that the USDOE's WAP grant award to New Hampshire will contribute to the weatherization 
of approximately one hundred fifty-seven additional (157) homes in the State as a result of this fund ing. 

In the event Federal Fu nds are no longer avai lable, General Funds will not be requested to suppo1t this contract. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jared Chicoine 
Director 

G&C 06/ I 6/2 1 

TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964 



OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES '

SUBJECT: WEATI-TERIZATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (WAP) PY20 CONTRACT WITH
SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated May 10, 2021, is between the Stale ofNew Hampshire, Office of Strategic
Initiatives, 107 Pleasant Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as "OSI")
and Southwestern Communit)' Sendees, Inc., 63 Community Way, Box 603, Keene, Cheshire County, NH
03431 (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), Contract Number 1075515, as
approved by Governor and Council on June 24, 2020 (Item #74), the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Sendees, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement in consideration of payment by
OSI of certain sums as specified therein.

WITEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be modified
or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after approval of such
modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The State and tlie Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in the
Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows: ■ - •

A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking the
current sum of $242,960.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of

>  $509,489.00 wherever it occurs.
B) Time Extension: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking the

current completion date of June 30, 2021, and inserting in place thereof June
30, 2022, wherever it occitrs.

C) Exhibit B - Scope of Services:
a. Amend Exhibit B, Item #2, by striking the current completion date of

June 30, 2021 and inserting in place thereof June 30, 2022 wherever it
occurs.

, b. Amend Exhibit B, Item #4, by smking'the current phrase "twenty-
eight (28) dwelling units" and inserting in place thereof "fifty-three
(53) dwelling units."

D) Exhibit C - Pavment Terms:
a. Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph, by striking the current sum of

$242,960.00, the "Contracted Amount," and inserting in place thereof
the total sum of $509,489.00.

SCS WXN20 Amendment Contraclur Iniiiuls:
Grant: DIM-K0007925 «> Date:
CFDA: 81,042 • Page 1 of 3



b. Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph, by striking the current sum of
$24,423.00 for AdministTation and inserting in place thereof the total,
sum of $56,426.00.

c. Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph, by striking the current sum of
$17,059.00 for Training and Technical Assistance and inserting in
place thereof the total sum of $36,575.00. .

d. Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph, by striking the current sum of
$7,719.00 for Health and Safety Measures and inserting in place
thereof the total sum of $5,235.00.

e. Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph, by striking the current sum of
$193,759.00 for Program Activity and inserting in place thereof the
total sum of $411,253.00.

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms
and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in fiill
force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in tlie Agreement as it
existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above
written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Officey^f Strategic fmtiativcs

By:
Jared Chicoine, Director

S/uthwesj£m Community Services, Inc.

By:
ing, CEOJohiyA. Manning

State of _
County of QnOAh i

On this // day of M/lU .2021. before me,
the undersigned officer, person^lv.appeared Cj/)h A/^j (} who
acknowledged himself/herself to be the of Soufhwestem Community
Services. Inc.. a corporation, and that he/she being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing
instrument for the purposes contained therein

IN WHTJESS WHEREOF, I hereunto setmy hand and official seal.
(  MX

Notary J^bjic/JuWiccffrthe Peace i 6,2022 ; |
My CoWssion eVes:

Approved as to form, execution and substance: ^

SCS WXN20 Amcndmcnl Coniractor Initinis:

Grant: DE-I-E0007935 a • l^atc:
tTDA: 81.042 ^ f'agc 2 of .3



OFFICE OF

By:

RNEY GENERAL

Slant Attorney General

Date: C// ^
I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the Slate of
New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2021.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

SCS WXN20 Amcndmeiu

Gram: Dn-r:E0007935

CFDA; 81.042

Contraclor Initials:

Date: Sil
Page 3 of 3



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. Willinm M. Gardner, Secretary'of Slate of the'State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 19, 1965. 1 further certif)' that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been

received and is in good standiiig-as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 65514

Certificate Number; 0005339790

=11
Kb

u.

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

] hereto set my hand ̂ d cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of April A.D. 2021.

7^.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OFAUTHORITY

I, Kevin Watterson , Clerk/Secretary of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
(name) (Corporation name)

(hereinafter the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that; (1) I am the duly
(stale)

elected and acting Clerk/Secretary of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) 1 am duly authorized to issue cerlincates with respect to the contents of such
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on Feb 18.2016 such authority

(date)

CO be in force and effect until June 30. 2022.
(contract icmiinaiion date)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

John A. Manning CEO
(Name) , (Position)

(Name) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire
(State of incorporation)

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) .said authorization has not been modified, amended or
rescinded and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

(6) I hereby understand that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the
person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to, bind
the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind
the corporation on contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations arc expressly stated
herein. •

I Rave hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation this 11th day of

.  May , 20 21 . ^

Herk/Secrelary



ACOJFYO* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DOrYYYY)

05/11/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poilcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or t>e endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an ondorsemenL A statement on
this cortlflcato does not confer rights to the cortlflcsto holder in lieu of such endorsomont($}.

PRODUCER

Clark Morlenson Insurance

PC Box 606

Keene NH 03431

contact O'Donnell, CPIW, CIC

1603)352-212, . (603) 357.M9,

AomtESS- sodonnell(9clarX-mortenson.com

INSURERS) AFFORDINO COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A: Philadelphia indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

Southwestern Comm Services Inc

PC Box 603

Kaane NH 03431

INSURER B: Employers Mut Ins Co 11149

INSURER c :

INSURER 0:

INSURER E ;

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 20/21 at! lines REVISION NUMBER;

LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

WUtVEFF
r!F

UUCV biP
UMTTSTYPE OF INSURANCE

X

iarn3 POLICY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILXTY

CLAJMS-MAOE OCCUR

GEhn.AGGREGATE LIMITAPPUES^R.

^ POLICY i I jea CD i-ocPOLICY

OTHER:

PHPK2147e53

IMM/DOrrYYYl

06/30/2020

(MWDO/YYYYI

06/30/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE

OAMAGL TOKcNlbD
PREMISES (Ea ocaifrencal

MEO EXP (Af»^ on« ppfion)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMPlOP AGO

CdM^N^b&NGLE UMIT
IE« ■eddanti

1,000,000

100,000

5,000

1,000.000

2,000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOffiLE UABtUTY

ANYAUTOX

1,000,000

BOOILY INJURY (Pw pATten)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
ALfTOSONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NONOVWEO
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2147851 06/30/2020 06/30/2021 BOOILY INJURY (Par accident}
PRDKRTVCAMAOE
fPar aeddanti

X UMBRELU UAB

EXCESS LIAO

DEO

X OCCUR

CLAIUS4IIAOE

E>CH OCCURRENCE 2,000,000

PHUB727327 06/30/2020 06/30/2021 AGGREGATE 2,000.000

RETENTTON $

WORKERS COMPENSATTON
AND EMPLOYERS'UABIUTY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PKRTNERCXECJTIVE
OPFICERMEUBER EXCLUOEDT
(Mandatory In NH)
n yea, oaacrttM under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS belOw

STATUTE

H 3102800766 04/01/2021 04/01/2022 E.L EACH ACCIDENT 500,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 500.000

E.L. DISEASE • POUCY UMiT 500,000

OESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACOR0101. AddKional Remarke Sehedula. may be attechtd tf  mere •pace la required)

VUbrkere Compensation Statutory coverage provided for the State of NH
/Ml Executive Officers ere included in the Wbrliers Compensation coverage

CERTiFJCATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State ol New Hampshire Office of Strategic initiatives

Johnson Hall

107 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301850

,  1 M

SHOULD ANY OF TK£ ABOVE DESCRiaED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE OELfVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

/ (U. /<b v:

ACORD 25(2016/03)
(S> 1988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. At! rights reserved.

The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



JIJN08'20am 9:34 OftS

Christopher T. Sununu,
Governor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Office of Strategic Initiatives

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Mall

Concord. NH 03301.3834
Telephone: (603) 271.2155

Fax: (603)271-2615

Division of Planning

Division of Enerov

www.nh.gov/osi

June 1,2020

Mis Cxccllcncy, Governor Christopher T. Suntinu
and the Honorable Council

Slaie House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

APPROVED BY GOVERNOR
& COUNCIL ON: 6/24/2020
AGENDAITEM: #74
PO #1075515

RKOURSTKD ACI ION

1) Authorise the OfTicc of Strategic Inilialivcs (OSI) to enter into a SQLK SOUUCK contract with
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (VCV/I775I I), Kccnc, NH, in the amount of $242,960.00 for the
federal Weathcri/aiion Assistance Program (WAP) effective July 1,2020, upon approval of Governor and
l-xccutivc Council, through June 30, 2021. 100% Tcdcral Funds.

Funds losuppoa this request arc anticipated to be nvoilablc in ihc following account in F Y 202! upon
availabiliiy and continued appropriation of funds in the future opcralihg budget:

Office onStrBlccic-lriiiinlivcs. I^w.Income Weathcri/aiion FY 2021
01 -02-02-024010-77060000-074-500587

Grant for Pub. Assist & llclicf $242,960.00

2) Further request aulhorixalion to advance to the vendor $38,752.00 of Ihc abovc-rcfcrcnccd contract
omoiini.

KXPLANATION

This contract is SOLIC SOURCli because of U.S. Dcpanmcni of Energy's (USDOE) grant guidance
(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Wcalhcrization.Assislancc
Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for the
Wcaihcrizaiion Assistance Program (WAP), and their historical pcrfonnancc dcllvcnng the wcothcri/ution
program.

OSI is responsible for administering Now Hampshire's statewide Wcalhcrization Assisinncc Program,
•funded by a grant from USDOIi. The objective of the program is to wcathcrizc homes to reduce energy
consumption and energy costs in eligible low income households. Priority is given to households that
include people who arc elderly, disabled, or children, and households with high energy usage. OSI contracts
Nvith New Hampshirc'.s Community Action Agencies to provide weathcrizalion services at the local level.
OSI cstimalcs lliai the USDOITs WAP grant award to New Hampshire will contribute to the wcaihcri'/iation
of approximately two hundred and two (202) homes in the State.

The requested advance of funds will enable Southwestern Community Services, Inc. to opcruic the program
between monthly reimbursements from the State, and may only be used for allowable program expenses as
detailed in Exhibit C.

TOD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
G«S:C 06/24/2020



His Ivxccticncy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

June 1,2020
Page 2 of2

In the event i-'ederal I'linds arc no longer available, General l-iinds will not be requested to support this
contract.

Kespeclfully submitted,

.lared Chi

lOirccibr,

Allaehmcnls

G&C 06/2'1/2020
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[  This aprcemcm and all oi iis aiiochnn-ins sliall become pulilic iipiin Mjhraisiion lo Ouvcraor mid
>.'■ Cxccolivc Council for approvHi. Any infooivQiion Uiat is; private, coftridcoiinl or proprictHf>' must
V  Ik clearly identified loilw agency and agreed to in Rritiiy} prior to signing the cosiinici. "

A'GKer./sn-M
I'iic State 0.1'Nnv Jlantpsliire uniJilie Contrjctor Ucreby iDuiuiillyagrcvJis foUtnvs;

GKNJ-UAL r',^OVJS)OfS^S

rlj sVnitvAgehcy.Name:
'  ̂ OJiicc (>rStmiciflc'ln}iiailve5
'  j

a "V

. 1.2! SldioAfitncy.^ddrcsj !
107 PJea»rtV$trtci.,J<fltn.^pn Hall' i

,Ccnourd,7>lcvvllamp.<Wrc 033t)l

■ 1.3' "Co'ntniciofNanK
;  ' Souiliwcslen) Community Services. Inc.

' ).4 iCoitiractOT Addfcss
. 6.1 Coimiiunily Way. PC Do.v 603. KeeiK. ^tn Ol'lSt

'  "ConinicibfiPhoiW
,i HiittikKr

(fip3.)'352-'Ti>2

"r.fi ' Account Number '
6i^2-02-0240i0-??060000-

^ 500587

; 1.7 CtimpklibniDhrc'^
'junc3rj.;262j """"""

i  ' i

I'.O Controding Oniccr for
' Kirk Siotic. Weaijscrriuliois.Ptusrom 'Momyer

■ l.iOVSinic Agcnc^-Telephone Ninnbdr" i
; (603) 271-2155 - ,

' l;l l ^pHSt^cipr^ " ' /1V12;' ^■^■nw'ondllilc■6f:G6n^^bttoT!S^en^ll^o^
|'John A. Mamiing, CnO
J  \

1.13 vl^hic A'gcncy^gftitiirc^^^ ) -hlatTKohd'Tilldbr.Siaic ABuncy Sigtwtuo^
'  ... ' '

Ck0^n;e., '■
".i.'I.Y^'Anprovil by th"e.N;.II..I/epv'nteni^df/Vdniiftlsiniiinn;]l)lv!l>lpn;of,ped'otifl .
1  j Uy:;' - Olrcctor. On; .

j.lf) Apfiioval by tlic.Atl6f«eyGcncral,(l;drriV.<SubstaiHxand (iWCOtlonl fiY'o^/crtfi/ff/. ' j

^j&l2xno _ '
1.17 AriplX\'af'b']pib^<^t>v^fh6"w fixcnilliKCoHricll. OfyifipUaibrt']

_ jun^ i

Pngc 1 ofJ
C'oniracior Inilialk

Date ^



2. SICRVICKS TO BE I'l-REOKMED. The. Siaic.ot: Now
Hanipsliirc. aciinj;' throiifih liic agency idcniifiod in block. 1.1
("Siaic"). engages conlracior jdomincd in block, l..>
("Contractor") lo perform, and the Coritractnr shall perfomi. the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more paniculnrly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by rcfcrciicc ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPEETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwiiltslanding'any provision of ihis Agr<^cnicni to the
contrary, and suhjeci to the approx-al pF the Governor pnd
Executive Councirof'thC;Stalc of Ncwj Ha.inpslii!rc,;ifi.app.l|c.nb!c,
this Agreement, and all obligations of.the partics hcrcunder. shall,
become effective on the- date the Governor- and Executive

Council approve this Agreement: as indicated in-blpck 1.17,
uiilc.ss no such approtTiI.is required, in whicliicasc thc.'Agtccmcnt
shall become cfrectiyc on the date the Agrccmcni'is signcd b.v
the State Agency as shown in block" 1,13 ("Effective.pate*').
3.2 If the Coiuracior commcpccs the Services prior to the
ElTcctivc. Date, all Services pcrrormcd by ihc-Cpntractor prior*to
the l-'ITeciive- Date- shall be pcrfornicd 'nr ilic.spic risk of the
Contractor,-and in the event thaf.ihts ̂ gt;ecmci\fdpes nofly.cpmc
cflectiyc. the State, shall have, no ijabiliiyuo-thc G'pnlractor.
including wiihpur limitation, any bbligaiion \o 'p.<>y the
Cpntjacior for any costs* incurred or Scryiccskpc.i^pnned..
Contractor must complete all ScrN'iccsvby lhe-6.ornpJciipn DatC;.
specified inblock l.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE'OEJ^CRpEMEm^^^
Noiwilhstanding'- any provision oC -lhis AgTcemcnt^ to. the.
comrary, ail obligations, of ihc Sjalc: hcrcundcr, including,
wiilioui limiialjon.. the continuance oTifjaymenis: hcreundcr,. arc.;
contingent upon the availabiliiy and cjinjimicd appropriatiomof
funds* uffecicd by any-state or-l^deral Icgisrativc-pr executive-
action iliat reduces, eliminates or pllicpvisc modifies ithC'
appropriajion qr*ayailabilily:of funding^for jhis AgCCCtTl
llic Scope Cor'Scr\'iccs.providcd in, EX1.HIB'IT^B: In.-wliole.or in
part. In no event' shall the. Stale; be Ijabjc ,for-.anyrqayri)CiUs
hcrcunder in excess of such ayatlableiappropriai^ .In, tiic-
cvcnl pfia reduction or termination" of appropriated funds, ilhc..
State shall have- ihc. righllto.wilhhojd, payment unijl.such funds"
bcconjc. available.' if-ever, and shall Iwtvc the. ̂ ighf to reducerof
ici'minaie. life. Scr.yices under iJns\AfiK?,i3ictit,'inimcdiat^ly..u^
givingrthc Contractor notice of such rcdyctipp or. ICrminafion.
Tlic.Statc shall not be, required to iransfcr.funds front any other
account or, source to tito Accouni idcntiftcd in block 1.6,*in the
event funds in thai Account arcTcduecd or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICF./I'KICE LIMITATION/

FAVMF.NT.

5.1 titc-conirjci price, method of payipcnt.und terms of payment
are idehtificd and more, particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which i.s incorporated herein by reference.
.*>.2 The pas'iiienr by (he Siate of the contract price shall be the
only and the. complete reimbursement to tlic Cpntracior for all
e,Kpcn.sc.s. of whatever nature inciuTcd by lite. Contraclbr in the
pciTunnanee heretif. and shall be ilie only and tltc complete

comix'tisation to ihe'Cpniracior for the Services. The State .shall
have no liabiliiy io the Comracior oliicr titan the conirncl price.
5.3 Thl*. Stai"c reserves* the right ip offset from any antounLs
otherwise payable to the, C^onlnicior under: this Agcceinem those
liquidated amounis' required or permitted by N'.H. "RSA 80:7
ihrougli RSA 80;7-c Of any otfjcr provision.of law.
5.4 Noiwithsianding any" provision In this Agreement to tltc.
cothiarj'.'and.nbiwiihsiandiou unexpected circumstances, in no
evcnirsluill (hc-l<»ial ofali payments authorized, or'actually inndc
hercnnder. cxcced'ihc. Price LimiiHtion sctfforth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLlANC.n BV CONTRACTOR,\yiT:H LAWS
AND regulations/ EQUAL EM.P.li^VMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the pcrforiiiancc of the Services., the
Contractor shall comply with nil applicable-statutes, laws;
regulation.s. and orders of federal, siaic",.county. o.r, niunieipai
authorities whicli imixtsc. any obligntion or duly upon the.
Coniroctor. including^ but not'limited lo. civil fights and equal
cmploymcni opportunity laws. In uddiiiqn, if this Agrecntcni. Is
fiindcd in any part by ntonicspfilic Unhcd'Sjaics, tiK.Coniractgr
shallcqtiiplynvnthioMifcdc^^^^ c«curi,vc,.ordere;;njjcsv'r^^
attdsiaiyics.:{tnd,Avitfr rcgulatipns^nd;guideU^]a^
Siaic pr; the dtiiicd.Siaies-issuix.io:in\p,l.cinc,nr;(hcsC:rcgyJatigns.
■fhe Contractor shall also comply wjih aTTappli<»blc. iVitcJlcctual
property laws.
6.2 During tlie t.erm ofihis Agreement, the Gpnii;act.prrshali.not
discriminate agains.i cniployees or applicants for cmplpyntcnt
because ofracc;. color, religion, creed, agcj'.sy.^handicap,-;sc>cyal
qricniation. of national origin and will lakc aflifntalivc 'action-to
prcyenj stich di.scrimihaiion:
6.3. The Comracior agrees to pcnnii,*the;:State-:q.rJjniied States
aGccss'ta any ofthc,Conirnciqf-s books. rccprda'and accountSifor
ihc-purposc ofhscciiaioing'cnmpliancc.'wiih jilhrules; regulations
and-ofders. arid (he covenants, terms and cpnditip.ns of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall,atJis o.wn expenM.proyidqall^pgr^onnel
ncccssnrs" to pciform'ihc- Scr,\'iccs.; Tfic ^i>n{raclopw3rCTnts.,ihat
nil porsonnol engaged in (he Services*, shall ^."qualified to
perform ihe Scn'icc.s. and ^Jthall propcjly .liccn.wd; and
oilici wisc auihorized to dp so under .alhapplicablc.iavvs.
7.2 Unless oihefwise authorized in, \vriting;,^dijring';thc term of
this Agreement, and for a pci;iod" of six (6) .months after the
Completion DateJn block 1.7, llic Contractor shall not hire, and
.shall noi permit any subcontractor or other person., firm or
corpormion witli whoni it is engaged in a cqnibincd cfTon to
perform the Services to Itire. any" person who is a Siaie employee
or official, who is materially inyolvcd in the procurement,
administration or peiTormance of this Agfccnicnl. This
provision shall sun-ivc termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Oniccr specified in block 1:9, or his or her
sticces.sor. shall lie the State's rcprescnlativc. In ihcfcvcnl of an.v
dispute concerning ihc inicqmctalion of itiis Agreement, the
Coniraeiing Officer's decision shall Ik final for the State,
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of ihc ibllowinii acts or omissions of the.
Coniractor sha!rcon.siitutc an cveni^of default hcreiinder ("Event
of Default''):

8.1. 1 failure, to perform t(ie Services satlsfaciodly or on
schedule:

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcreunder; andfor
8.1.3 failure to pcrform.any other covenant; Icmi or condition of
this Agrccnicni.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Evenfof Default, the State may
tokc.any one, or rnorc, or al!, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Evcntiof
Default;and requiring it labe remedied within, iri ihc.abscnce of
a greater,or lesser spccificatlpn qftlmc, thiiiy (36) days'>from thc-
date of the notice: and ifthcEvettf of Default is not timely cured,
lenninaic this Agreement, cfTccjiye twq.(2) days.afier giving ihc
Coniractor notice of termination;
,8.2.2 give the'Controctpr a written notice>spccifyiiig',the Gyent'of
Default and suspending all payntents to made under'this
Agreement tind ordei'ing thatj thc ponion of the, coittraci price,
which would otherwise bcctuc to the Contractpr"during tite»
period .ftprn the date of such notice until such. timc as the Stait-
determines that the tZoiitractor has cured thc/Evcntjof,Default
.shall neyrr be paid to'the Cpntraaor:
8.2.3 givc.thc tContrnctor a,written nqlicc^specifying the^Eyenl of-
Dcfoull-end sct-ofPagainst-ony other obligaljons the-Slate ntoy
owe-to the Contractor any damages tjve'^taic.sjulTers by. reason of
nny Event of Default; and/or
8.2:4 give ihe-.Contracippa'writien notice specifying thqEvcnipf
Default; treat the. Agreement as breached, tcnminaic the
Agreement,and pursue.atty of-ils remedies atjaw.or.in equity, or-
both.

8.3. No failure bythc State tocnforcc any provisions hcrcpnaflcr
any Ivvenfof Dcfaulfshail bedecmcd.a:waiver 6f Its rî ts with.,
regard to thai-rEveni'of Default,.or any subsequent^ Event of
Dcfauli':' express fitilurc locnforcc any Evcnt;pTDcfauli;shaM
be deemed a.waivcr oflhc.righf of the S(at(^,lo^,enforce mcH and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further pr-othcr Event .of
Dcfault.on the part:o.Clhc Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

"9.1 Notwiilisianding paragraph 8. the State , may. at its sole
discretion, lerminaie the, Agreement fqranyr.cason, in whole or
in pah. by iHiriyJ3d) days wTittcnrnpticc'to thc.Comractpr thaj
the State is exercising.Its opbon to terminate,the /igreemcni.
9;2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason- other than the completion of .the Services, the
Contractor shall, ut the State's discretion: deliver to the

Contrdcting OITtccr, not later than nAcen ( l*5) days'afier Ihc date
of termination, a report' ("Tcrmitiation Report') describing in
detail all Scmces peffprrncd. and. thc-cpntract,price earned! to
and including'the date of tcmiinaiipn. The fohn. subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those ofany Final Report described In the Dtiached
EXI IIBi r 5. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor

.shall, within 1.^ days of notice of early icVmination. develop and

PttgC

submit to lite State a Transition. Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agrceincitt, the .word "data" shall mean all
infpniiaiion and things developed or obtained during the
pcrfomtancc of, or acquired or developed by reason of, tliis
Agreement, including, but-not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys.,maps, charts, sound recordings^, video
rccpfdings!, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
reprcsentatioj)s.,'c"pmputcr program's, computer pfiniouls, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents.- all whether
finishcd.or unOnished,
16.2 All data and any.properjy which has been received from
thc'Siatc or purchased with/tjnds provided for that purpose
.under this Agreement', shall, be the property of the State,.and;
shall be. returned to the State upon demand or upon tcrminatjpn
of this Agrccmcntfor emyrcasoii.
10.3 Conndcniialiiy ofdata sliall;bc 'govcrncd by N.H..RSA
chapter ,9^1-A;or other existing law. Disdosurg.ofdata requires
prior-wTlltcn approval oftltc State;..

,1,1. COfST,RACTOR_;S HEtAt'ON TO in the-
performance.-of this Agrccmeni:the Contractor is ih.all.respcclf
an independent coniructor, and is nejthcr an agent 'nor an
cniploycc of the State. Neliher ihc; Coniractor nor any of»iis
officers; entRloyccs, agents or mentbcris shall have authority to;
bind,the Slai_c:or receive ajiy.bencfiis, \yorkcrs' cqmpicnsatipri or
other emplumcms,providedVbythe-SlalctoMts employees.

12. assignment/dele.catjon/subcontr^
12.1 Th'c Contractor shalj not assign, or-othcrwisc.transfer any
interest m.ihis Agreement'w-ithout the prior-writtenmqiicc: which
shall be provided to the State at least'fifteen,(l'5),days prior to
the assijgnincnt..and a w-r.iUcn consem.onhe Staje.JToj; purposes;
of this paragraph, a Change- of Control shRll constitute,
assi^menl, "Change ibh Gonifor ̂  mews (a), niejgcr;;
coitsqildati6ri,.qr.a trerisaciibh .of ser[es'^:r.clotcd[lrBhMctlbp^^^

. which third party- together with its:;8!ffi[iares; becomes^ the.
direct or indirect owijcr'of Hfry f>creent;(Sj5%) or morc crfLihc;
voting shares; or similar eqtuty interests, or-combined voting"
pcw'cr bftfle.Cqntrac^r. of (B) ihc-sale.'.qf all.or substantially all
of the assets-ofthc.'Coniractor.

12.2 N^c,,df, the'. Scryices shall, be subcontracted |by the
.Contractor without: prior wrltien^nqticc and cpn^nt ;pf.the Sl^e.
'ntc.<Siaic''is enbtlcd to copjcs ofall subcqntmcis end assignment
ogrccincntvand sliati nut be bound by. any provisions coniai.ned
in a subcomract or an assignment:agreemcni tOfsvhich it is.npt'-a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION.' Unlessotlierwfsc c.xcinpiecl by law;
the Coniractur shiill indemnify and hold harinjcss the $iBie, its
oflicers nnd_ employees, from and. against any and all claints.
liabiliiics and costs for any personal injury or property dantagcs.
patent or copyright infringement, or oilier claims asserted against
the State, its ofTicers or employees, which arise out of (or which .
may be claimed to arise out oO tlic acts or omission of the
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Comroclor, or subcoolrnctbr^. iiKtudliii^ bui.noi limited (o tlic
negligence, reckless or intcnilonal.conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs ipcurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Nbtwiihstandiiig liie foregoing. nothing herein
contained shall bedeemcd to constitiite a waiver of the sovereign
immunity ofthc State, which imipuniiy is hereby reserved.to the
State. Tliis covenant in paragraph 1.1 shall surs'ive Ihc.
termination Q.rthis. Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Cortira'ctpr shall, at . its sole expense, obtain arid
continuously ntainlain in force, and shall require arty
.siibcontmctor or assignee to obtain and" maintain in ror"cc, the
followingjinsurancc:
14.j.l commercial general liability insurance against,all claims
o( bodily injury, death for property damage, in amounts.of. not
less than SI.OOO.O^^ per occurrence and S2,000.000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special causc o("lb.ss?covcragc form covering all,property
subJect'tp-subparBgraph 10.2 herein, in an.amount not less than
80% ofthc w^le.replacement value ofthc property.
14.2 The policies described ih-subparagraph 14.1 Itcrcin,shall,be
on.policy forms and ciKlo.rscincnts,approvcd fur use-in the Slate
ofiNew-Hampshirc by the N.H-. I^panmcnt- of Insurance', and
issued by insurers licensed in the State ofhJcw Hathpshirc; _
14.3 The C.onlroctor shall furnish to.the Contracting Offtcer
identified m-Wo.ck; 1.9, or His^or her .sticccsMr. a cctii.nc.ateXs) of
insurance >for all ins.urBncc required under this Agreement..^
Contractorshajj also furnish io:thc-Comracting'Onj.ccridcntificd
in block; 1^9,;or.his'qr her succc.ssor. certificaic(s) of insurajtcc
for ail.rencwal(s),qfinsurance required under, this.Agrecmcnimo
later lhan-.icn (.10) days prior to ihc^-cxpitTttiori datCv oT each,
insurance policy. The certificotefs) of insurance and any
renewals ihcreoPshall hc;atinched.and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WQiRKERS,' epMPETy^ATlON-
i i,l IDyisignliig'this agreerricnl^ tlVe Cb.htiactbr agrees: certifies
and vy-arrantS'thatfthc Conlractor.is in compi[ancc wlth;br jcxenipl
from, ihcircquircmcnts of.RH. R'SA.chaptcr 281-A ('-Workers-
Com[Kn.wtion ").
J5.2 To'ihciexjcni ,fHe|Cpn)ractorjs;$ul>Jcci'lo thc'requiremcnls
of N.H; RSA chapt'cr 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
rcquirc-atiy subconlracior-or assignee to secure-and ittainiajn,
payment of Workers' Compcn.Miipn in conheciion with,
activities which ihc'pei^n proposes to undertake pursuani;to this.
Agreement. Tihc.Cpntrtictor;shall furnish Ihe Contracting OlTiccr
identified in block 1.^9. prhis or her successor, proof.of Workers-'
Compensation In the.manner described lit NTi, RSA chaptc/
281-A and'any applicable rcnewa|('s) thereof, which shalf'bc
attached ami arc. incorpontlcd herein by reference; Tlic Sjate.
shall, hot be responsible- for payment, of any ^^prkers"
Compeniation premiums or for any othcr cloim or bcnefiufpr
Contractor, or any subcpntractor or entploycc of Conlracjor,
which might nnsc- under applicable State of New Hampshire-
•Workcnt' Compensation lais's in connccijpn with the
performance of the Services under iliis Agreement.

16. notice: Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have bccii duly delivered or given at thc time
of mailing by certified mail, posiagc.prepaid, in a United States
Post OITicc addressed to the panics at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and .Ii4. herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instnmicnt. in writing signed b>- (he
panics hereto and only after approval of such amcn'dmenl.
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Hxecutivc Council of
the State of New Hampshire,unless no such approval is required
under ihc-.circumstanccs* pursuant"to'Slate law. rulc'or policy.

1,8. CHOICE OF,LAW AN.D.FORUM. This Agrccmentshall
be governed,. Interpreted and construed in accordance w.ith.ihc
laws of the State of Ncw Hampshire, and is binding upbh and
inures to"the bchcfii'ofthe pariies.and their.respcctivc successors
and.as-si^s. The wording used in tiiis Agreement is the wprdirjg
chosen by the parties to c.xprcss their mutual intent, and no nilc
of constructioivshall be appljcd,against or In fayorof any party.
Any aciionsVarising-out^orihis Agreement'shall be.brought and
maimahicd"in_N,cw"Humpshirc Superior GourtAvliich sltalLhavc
exclusiye Jurisdiction thereof.

19. GQNFLICXINC. TERMS. In the event of a confiici^
bciwcca^ilie icms of tHis',P-37 form (as modificdJh EXHIBIT'
A)'and.'or-altachmcnis and amendment thereof, llVc tcrhrs ofrthe^
R-37 (qs^mpdlficd in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

'20. THIRD PARTIES. The.,parties hereto do not. intend to
bcncfil any third 'Ranics aiid this Agreement shall, not be
construed (o"cohfc.r?any such benefit.

21. iiEADINCS. lihc.hcadings-througljqut ilic.AgrccmciU.arc'
for rcfer,cnccN purposes only, and thc Av;ords conraincd therein:
sivaH'in np^vya'yjbc^licjdrto.cxpraiii; modify, amplifypraid iiviilic,
imerprctatjpn,,construction or m.eanihg.of the.'pfpyisio'ns oftHls.
Agrecmcnf.

22." SFECIA^L PROVISIONS. Additional, or modifying
provisions sct.forth in tlic attached EXHIBIT A^arc ihco'r^raicd
Herein by reference,

23. SEVXRABfLITV. In the event any ofthc proyisiohs'of this
Agrccmcni arc-held by a.court^of competent jurisdltrtipn to be
cpnirar)-lqlMy;slalc-pr federal law, the remaining provisibns.of
this Agrecmcnirwiil remain in full force and cfFect..

24. ENTIRE AjGREEMENT. Tliis Agreement. Which'mny'bc
c.yecutcd in a number of counterparts, each of which, shall be
deemed nn qt;iglnal, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding;between the- parties, and supersedes* all prior
agiccmcrus and understandings with rcspccVio tlic siibjccfmaltcr
hereof.
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EXHIBtT A
■i

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200 as amended (Uniform Administrative Rcquircmenls. Cost Principles, and Audit R^uirctnents for
federal Awards), 1,0 CI R 440 dated Fcbruar>'. I. 2002 CWeatlierizalion Assistance Program), llic New
Hampshire Wcathcrizotion Assistance Program State Plan, Wcalhcrization Assistancc.Program Policies and
Procedures, and Field Guide arc all considered legally binding and enforceable documents under this
contract. Osrrcscrx'cs thc.right to use any legal remedy ot-ils disposal including, but not' limited to.
disallowancC'Of costs,'withholding df funds-, suspension'of agc'ncy.persbtincl, disbarnVcrit of agency
personnel, disbarment: of agciicics and/or subconijaclors from present, or future contracts, and such.other
legal remedies as deicirnincd to He appropriate by the New- Hampsliirc Dcparlment~or justice in the-
enforcement of rules and rcgulaijons peririining to the-Weathc'rization Assistance Program,

2. An audit shall be made at;ilie-cnd of the Contractor's fiscal year iri'accordancc with 2 CFR.-200, Subparl'F •
Audit Requirements. This audifrcpori'shall include a schedule ofrevenues and cxpendilures by
contracl or'grant riujnbcr of all expenditures during the Cbntraclof^s fiscal year. Thcebntractbr shall
utilize-a compciitive bidding process to clioqsc a qualified, financial auditor af least every four years.
The audit rcppii shall include a,schedule of p/ior ycqr's questioned costs along'with a rcsponscTp tHc.currem
status of the prior ycar's-qucstibned costs. Copics.of all.manageincnt'let'iers written as a result'of the audit:
along wiili thcaudiircpon Shall be fon^-arded toOSI witliin one month of the time of receipt by the
Contractor accompanied by an notion plan, if appHcablc^ for.cach fmdjngpr questioned cost.

3. The rollowiug-paragniplfslfalj be addcd.tb jjara^aph 9 6rihc,;gencral.(>rovi_si6hs

"9.4 All ncgpii.aicd contracts (except those of $5,000 or IcsS) awarded hy the Subgrantcc shall.allow
OSI, DQEj-tne'Coniptrbller General bfthe United Stales^ or'any dul)'"a(jih'dflzcd rcprcscritativcs; access
to any books; documents, papers, and recpril-S of the Subgraiiicc or their subconiraciors, which are
dlrcct[y f>crtincnt to. the, ^cathcrizatipn Assistance Progrnm'fo.r the purpose of making audits,
examinations, excerpts and transcription." ' ' •

4. in paragraph 10 cfrthc general provisions, the fonowing sentence shall be.deleted: "The form, subject matter.
.  cont'cnu aji'd number oTcopies oflire TcTniination Rcpbn'shall be-ideniical lb those, of/any Final Report'

described.in EXKIDIT A."

5. l.hc costs charged under this cotilract shalfbc determined as allpwablc-undcr the cosfpriiiciplcs detailed in 2
Cf:R:20p Subpart E - Cost Principles.

6. Program and financial records pertaining.io this contract shall be rciajned by the Contractor for 3 (three)
years from Ihc.datc of .submis.sion of the fina'i expenditure report'or, for awards that are-rcncwed quarterly or
annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or onnuaUfinancial report, ns staled In 2 CFR
200.333 - Retention Rcquiremcnls for Records.

7; Kirk Stone, Wcalhcrization Program Manager ofOSI. has been designated with the.responsibility for
' overseeing this contract;

E.vlhbiisiA-,'
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8. Tlic following paragraphs shall Iw added lo the general provisions;

"IS. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL lUNDING. li is undcrsiood and agreed heiwccn the parlies that
no p.ortj9norjhc "Grant" funds rnay be used for the purpose of obtainiiig additional l-ederal funds
under any other law of the Un ited States, except if authorized under that law."

"26. ASSURANCES/CERTIHJCATIpNS. The following are attached and signed; Cenincation Regarding ,
Drug-sFree Workplace Requirements; Certification Rcga!;dingiJ3bbying: Certification Regarding
Dcbai;mcnr; Suspension and Other Rcspoi\slbiliiy Mattcrs:i Cerlification.Regarding the Americans With
DisabJIilics Act Compliance; Ccnificaiion Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of
Cotiipliancc Nbndiscriminalion.in Federally Assisted Progr^s: and Certification Regarding the
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.

"27. CORELAKD ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. All.coiuracts and subgrants in cxces.s of S2.000.00 for
construction or. repair.shall include;a provision for compliance with C^ppcland •'Anti-K.-ickback- Act (18
use 87^) as supplemented in; Department oPLabor Regulations (29 CFR,fPart 3). This Act provides
that each contractor, .sijbconirapl or suhgrantee shall be"^p^ohlbiled froth, inducing, by ariy mcan.s. atiy
person, employed in the construclipn. completion or repair of public \vprk,, to give up any part of tlic
corhpensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgfaTitec..yK5iild.rcport:all suspected violations
lo'OSI." - '

*'28. PR0CGR;EMENT. Subgrantcc shalj comply w ith all prbv.isiohs of 2 CFR 200 Subparl'D - Post
iFcderal. A.ward..Rcquircmc.nts -Procurement Standards, with special cmphasision fihancial
procurcmcht ( 2 GFR 200 Siibpart F - Audii.'Requircmcnts) 'andprqpbrty ntanngemeni (2 Ci-R 200
SuBpari D-Posl Federal'Award Rcquircincnis - Property Siahdai^s)"

•'29. GLGSE-OUT'OF CONTRAG'T, All final, rcquii^ed imports.and rcimbursemcnt'requests shall be.
submitted to the Stale within sixty (CO) days of the completion dale (Agreement Block L7).'-

ivxliibits';
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Soullnvesicnj Community Services. Inc., hereihaflbr "the. Contractor" or "Subgfiirilce,'' agrees to pcifonn
wcathcrizalion services and al) additional sen ices and other workjiecessaiy to provide Weathcrizatlon
Assistance Program (W«^P) services to eligible low income individuals in accordance with tlic rcgulalipiiis set
forth by the U. S. Department of Energy in 10 QFR 440 dated February l,.2p02, and in 2 CFR 200 as
arncndcd, atid.in accordancc-wilh the provisions and procedures contained in the most recenv^Ncw Hampshire
Wcathcrization Assistance Rrogram (NHWAP) Statc Plan. Policies and Procednfes Manual. Fici.d Guide,-and
as dlhcr>vise administered by the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI).

Pcrio'dically OSI may issue Svibgranice Guidance (SO) and Sub'grantce Notices (SN) or cither clarificalions as
necessary-. All such changes shall be considered as incorporated into the NK Wcathcrlzation-Policics and
Procedures Manual and,Field Guide. The Contractor agrees "to alter (he Program procedures in accordance
with a SO, SN or othcr instnictions.

The Subgrantcc agrees fo abide by changes In thc'NM Wcathcrization Assistance Pro'gram designed to
improve program delivery and fiiriher agrees i6 perform WeatHerizaiion Progi'am services in a manner (hat
will successftilly interact with utility administered energy cITicicncy programs for low-income households in
o'rdcr/to provide (he best services fo? New Haifipshirc-'s low-incomc houschdlds.

2. The co'iilracl period, to be known as Program Yea? 2020 (Py20), will commence oh July 1,2020;and.wil[
have.a>completipn date of June 30. 2021, subject.to the approval of Governor and..l^ccutivc Council.

3. Plans for expenditure of fund.s for Training and Technical Assistancc.Trpgrani Implementation, and
Leveraging Activities must be defined in.thc-Contractor's'ManagcmcntvPlan (GMR)'and,approved by OSI
Requests to deviate froni ihc-pian must be made in writing in advance, and approved by OSI as prescribed in
the NH Policies and Procedures Manual.

4. InlPYjO. Cpnfraclorngrccs io:c()mpletc Wcalhcri/jition Services on iwenty-eiglil (28) dwelHng'imits
.accordlng io tlie-standards outlined in the most recent-NH.Weathcrlzation Policies and Procedures Manual
•and,Field-Guide.

(a) Wcathcrizalion Seri'ices are inierided (6 increase the energy efficiency of the home, and to irnprove the
liqmc's comfort and.safety. A certified encrgy.auditpr first pcrforrits a NH.WAP energy audii on the
home using scjcntific test equipment. Specific cnerg)' conservation measures and heating source repairs
arc,then ihiplemcmcd m:qrder of priority and cost effectiveness. Tliis integrated activity is carried, out in
accordance wltii provisions and procedures outlined in.the most recent Nli-pdlicjcs and' Procedures
Manual and Field Guide;

(b) The.minimum numb'cr of dwelling units and the .amount of funds to be expended shall conform to the
firpvisions of this contract and shall l>c incorporated into the CMP. Deviations of more Than 20% from
expected dwelling unit gools in any given quortcr mn>- result-in a reduction of the contract amounts and a
reallocalion of fund.s to other contractors.

5. In accordance with thc-US:'DOE's"Quality Work Plan" (OW'P) and the provisiphs of Wcathcrization
Program Notice (WPN) 1,5-4
(ht1p:/.^s\v^^^v^^nnthc■o^^^?^H^a■''t'>lcs/VVcl^lsilc docs/Go\'criinicnt/GU|dance.''2()l4/WpN- l 5-4.pdr). beginning
April I, 2015, Contractor must have regular and reliable access to properly "trained and certified Quality

IhitiulS'
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Conirol Ii\spcctpr(s), available as either staff or conrraclors, able to fully function in that capacity. ThI.s
contract' provides funding for continued training and technical assistance sufficient to alldw'thc Contractor it)
secure and maintain the skilled personnel ncccssQr>- to meet ilic requirements of WPN' 15-4.

6;' All work performed under the Wcathcrization Assistance Program (WAP) in New Hampshire, using federal
money from any WAP prpgrantycar, must meet the minimuih s^cifications defined in the US Dcpartraom of
Ehcrg>''s "Quality Work Plan" (Q^P) and the associated Standard Work SpecificatipnS'(SWS). Details arc
presented in the Standard Work Specifications (SWS) for Home Energ>' Upgrades i:efen?s<l to in US DOE
Wcatherizatipn Program'Nptlcc 15^ (sec link in paragraph 5, aWvc), as well ds i;h lhc )^cw Hampshire
Wcathcrization Assistance Program's Field Guide, a.s most recently amended, wliich,^vcms WAP work in
New Hampshire; Cdnlractor'musf ensure, and be able to document for OS!, that all.stafTand contractors wlio
will perform Wcathcrization work are properly trained and certified for that work and^Ha've been informed
that their work.must meet the requirements of (he,SWS or dwelling units will not be considered complete and
reimbursement will.not occur.

Exhibits

Initi

Page 4 bfS
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In considcralion of ihe.satisfaclory performance of (he Scr\'iccs, iheSlalc agrees lo pay llic Contractor,
Southwestern Conimunltj* Services, Inc., in total, the sunrof:

$.242^96p!pp (which hereinafter is referred lo as the "Contracted,Amount"), of which
24,423'.00 may be expended for Administration,

-$ :|7;bs.9;00 may bc.cxpcndcd'for Trainiifg' &-Tcchiiical. Assistance.
-$ ,7,-719X0: may be expended for IHcahh &*Safety measures.
$ L93,75.9:pp (dic'balancc), to be spum on wcatltertMiibn activities (Program Activity) and.
:$ 3.8".T5i;b,0 will be issued as a cash advance.

Drawdowns from the total coniracted amount-will be paid to the Contractor only after, wTittcn
documentation of cash-necd.Js submitted to OSI. Disbunjemcnt'olThe conlraclcd-ammintrshall be made
in actiordancc withjthe procedures established.by the State''aft'd 2 CftR 200.305(b) dtfani'adx'ancc'basis;
limilt^ to minimum amounts hee'd^; aridrbc timed'to be,in accordance with theactuah immediate-cash
rcquircmcnis of ihe'ContTactpr ih:can:>ing,out:lhe;purposc of'lhc prpgra.^i. The ContraGlor,m"usl,niake
timely, payments tp,.(sub)cpntractors;.i!t/abcp.rda^^ wiiJt the .contract provisions. Conlftictor shailsubmii
a payhtcnfrcqu'esi.fo OSLfor.each mdhth;of thc contract;period. Bayrnent-requests iTpm.GAniractor;
shall be receive'd.at OS! no iaicrihan'.ihe IS'^day of each momh.,or the-first business dayTplldwingthe-

Admihistrativc costs'arc. provid.ed to cover a specified number of unit completions at minimal standards..
Adminislraiivc funds may be prorraicd by OS) if production-'unit completions do nofhicct'-expectcd production
goals.

OS! m.ay.vas-a'ifunciipn of ilS'admini,stfaiive;oversighli modify coiitraclcd budget.ariiouhls'asjnMessaty to ensure
the cfflcient'bperaiioh bfthe'^NHWAP as lo'rig'as'tliese modified expenditures do not exceed the Goniracted
Amount total as spc.cificd above'.

All obligations of the State, including tlie coritinuaiVce of any payments, arccbntingentupon thc.ayaiiability and
continued appropriation of funds,for the services to be provided.

C.xliibiis

Inith
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OEPICE OE STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contraciofidcmified in Seclion 1 ,3 of IheGencral Provisions agrees (o comply wiih tlic provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of Ihe Drug-Free Workplace Act'of 1988 (Puh. I- 100-690. Title V. Suhiitle D; 41 Li.S.G.
701 el seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's rcprcsemaiive. as identified in Sections 1 .1 1 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions CKCciite the follovVitig Ccftification:

CERTIEICATION regarding DRU.G-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE ! - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPAR-TMENTQF HEALTH.AND HUMAN SERVICES

USiDEEARTMENT OF ENERGY

US,department of HpMELAND.SECURITY

This certification is required by the regulations implcmcming Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1.988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle'D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ci scq.). The Januarv-31. 1989. rcgulalibn.s
wcrc amended and published as Part 11 o'rthe. MayvTS. i 990. Federal.Rcttistef toaacs 216'81.^2169.1), and require
ccnificatidn by grantccs"(and by inference; slib^gVant^s aiwl sub-contractors), prior to award, tJtat.they will
maintain, a dnigifrcc workplace. STCtipn .SOi! 7..630(c) of the regujation provides that a grantee (and by inference,,
sub-grantccs.and sub-contractors) thai'ls a ̂ iaic may.clcct;to inakc'oneccrti'fication.io tlic Dcpartmciit in each
federal, fiscai ycar in lieu "of certificates fo'r cacH,'gT\nl'durihg thcTcdcfal fisca! >-car covered by the ceriificafipn.
The certificate sel out belpw is a-maleriairreprcsentatlon.oflbcr upon which reliance is placed when th'c^agcncy
awards ihe graiit. F^alsc:ccrtification*orvidlatibn:ofilhc ccrtirication shali be grounds' for suspclisidn oFpaymcfils-,
suspension or lerminaiibn of grants; 6r'g6S^mmcnfAvide..suspcnsibn or debai^X"^'- ConiractQre.usingithi.sTqirn
should send it to:

Director. New Hampsliirc OfTicc, of Strategic initiatives;
l07 Pleasam Street,J.ohnspn Half. Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies (hai'it will pr-will continue to provide a drug^free workplace-by:

(a) Piiblishing a.staienicnl nolifying'cniployees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, posscssion.pr.-use.of a contrpllcd.substancc js prohibited in.liic grantee's.workplace,
and specifying tlic.aclions (hatAvill be tiakch.against employees fdr violation of such proliibitipn;

(b) Eslablishing ah ongoing drug-free'awareness program io inform employees.about:—

(1) The dangers pFdriigsabuse in the workplace;
(2) The gfani'ec'S-pollcy df'maintaining.a diug-frcc workplnee;
(3) Any available,drugxounseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance progranis;iand.
(4) The penalties thai maybc impDsed upon employees for dnig abuso violations'occurring

in the workplace:

(c) Making it a requirement that.cach employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given A copy of the s'tatemcnf required by paragraph (a):

(d) Notifying the employee in the.statcmcnt required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment,under.lJie grant, thcemploycc willi-—

(1) Abidc.by the tcinis of the slntcmcnt: mid
(2) NoiifS-: the. employer in writing of his or her conviction for a, violation of a criminal drug

statute tKCiirriiig in the workplace no later than five calondar days after .such conviction:

ihru;i:l

I  7»
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CKRTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I,- FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

(e) Notifying the agency In writing, \s ilhin ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an cmployec-or otherw ise recciving'actual notice of such conviction.
Employers oTconvicted cmploj'ces must providC'notice, including position title, to'every grant -
ofltccr on whose grant activity the convicted employee was Avqrking. unless the Federal agency
has designated a central point for-ihe receipt of such, notices. Notice shall include the
idcnlirication ntimbcr^s) of cadt affected grant;

(0 Taking.one of:lhc following actions.-within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (dX2). with respect to any employee wlio isjo convicted—

(1) Taking appropriate persohnci action against such an ccnployec, up to and including
termination, consistent with the reqiiircmcms of thc-Rchablliiatiop Act of "1973, ̂  "
amended: or

(2) Requiring such cmploycc^to pariicipntc satisfactorily in'o drug abuse assislanccor
rchabiHtaiion program ̂approved for such purposes by a,Federal, State, or local health,
lasv enforcement, or other appropriatc;agcncy;

(g) Making ajgood fajlh cffori' ip continue to;ntaintaiii a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), 0),.(e).-;and (f).

(D) 31iCvgronlcc;may insertin the space providcdbclow the silc(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Perfonnancc (strect.add.ress; cit>', count^', State; zip code) (list each location)

63 Community Way
Kecnc,NH 03431'

Check Q if ihcre arc workplaces on filc-that arelnotidentlficdjicrc.

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. Ally j . 2020 - June 3b. 2021
Contractor-Name Period Covered by this Cerllficauon

Jiphn A. f^flMih'Ei.CEQ ..
Npmc^d I'itlc of Authorized Contractor Representative

ypritracior Rcprescmaiivc Signature DaiC;

ExhIbits.D thru H

Inili'SZL Dafc
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ATAV HAMPSHIRFv OFFICE OF STI^TEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD.EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified iit Section 1 ,3 of thcGcncral Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions ol
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidancc.for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S-.C. 1352. and further agrees,to have. the. Contractors representative, as identified in Sections 1.1 1 and 1,12 of
the General Provisions execute ihe following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGAINING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF H0M'ELANI) SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Cotnniunity Scrx'iccs Block Grant
Low-lncome-Hoinc. Ilncrgj- Assistance (Program.
HRRP Prggram
WeathcHzation Assistance Program

C.ontract Period." July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021
•The-undoreigncd certifics. lo the best of his or her knpvvledgc and ̂ [ief, t.hat:

(1) No Federal appropriated.funds.havc-^bccnj^paid or wili^bepaid by or on behalf of the undersigticd.. to any
p^_rson for influencing or attempting id influcncc an officer or ctitployce ortiny agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or cniplbybc'bf Congress, or an eibplpycc of a Member of Coiigress iit connection
vwith-thcawai^ing of any Federal c.ontract. contimiation; renewal.'amendment, or modificat ion of any
Ft^cfai cbniraci. granf, loan, or cdopcrativc agreeincnt ('and HVvspiwific ibchtidh subigrahtcc or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other ihanj^cdefal appropriated fiinds havc^eenpaid-or will be paid to any person for
influencing or aticmpting'lo influence'an officer or entp.loyce of.any agency, a Member of-Congrc.ss, an
ofTiccr.or. employee of..Congrcss.-or an cmploj'cc*dr''a'Mcrnbcr oT'Congrcss:in cdiincctioii with this
Federal coniract, grant, loan, or cooperaliycagrwrnent (and by specific menlion.stib^grantcc.or sub-
contraclor).'thc undci:signcd:5hall complete and subiniflStandard FoiTi LLL. •'Disclosure. Forni to Report
LobtTying, in accordancc-with its instructionSj attached and identified a's Standard Exhibh E-l.

(3) The undcTsigned shall, require that the language of this ccrtificajion be Included ip the award docunieni
Tor sub-awards at all tiers (including siibconifacts- sub-grants, and ccniracls under grants, loons.-and
cddpcrntivc agfecrncnts) and thnt'^ail sub-rccipicnls sliall,certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a motcrial'rcprcschtation of fact upon which rc'liancc was placed when this transaction was
made o.r entered into. Submission of this certification is a prcrequisitc for makingor entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any pcVson \vh6 fails to flic the required ccrtificalidn shall be
subject.to^ivil penalty of not less than $10,000 and noi"more than $10.0,00.0 for each such.failurc.

■  . . John A.,Manning; CEO . .. .
•"(ji^ntirnctor Representative Signaiiirc Contractor's Representative Title.

Sbuliixy^stem Community Services,Jnc. -
Coutrncibr Name JDhtc

Exhibits D thni I I
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NEW HAMPSHIRE 01-FICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contracior-identincd in Scciion r.-3 of'the General Provisions ngrees to comply with ihc provisions ol"
. Executive Oflicc oflhc President. Executive Order 12529 and 45 CPR Pan'76 regarding Debanucnij Sus|>chsion.
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections I.I I and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Ccnificalioii:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEB'ARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITV MATTERS - PRIMAR.Y COVERED TRANSACTIONS

InstntcUonsJar Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective prunary pariicipant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The-inabill.ty of a person io provide the certification required below, will not necessarily result' In denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If nccessaiy,. the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why itcannot provide the certification. The ccnification'or cxplnnaiion will bc'considcrcd in coniVecilon
with thc:NJI p.fficc qf Straicgic iniiiatlvc^(OS!) dcicfinination.whcihci: to enter itito this iransacti.on.
However, .failure of the,prospective primaiy panicipant to furnish a ccnificaiion or an explanation shall
di^ualify such person from participation in this transaction. .

(3) The certification in this clause is'aimatcrial rcpr.cscntatiqn pf faci uponvwhich reliance was placed when OSl
determined to cnter-inio this'transaction. Ifit is laicTdctem'iinVd'lhaVthc.prospcctivc^primary pa'rticipanl-
knbwingly rendered an crroneous'cct^ification, in addition,to other remedies available to the federal
Government; OS!, may terminale-thlsjransaciion for cause,or,defauli,

•  (4) The prospective primary participanl'shall, provide immediate Wixlnenjioticc to the OSI-agcncy to whom'lljis
proposal (controct) is submitted if aVnnylimc the prospective primary participant learns tija_l,iis certification
waS;erroncous'when submitted or-has become erroneous byircason of changed clrcuin.stances.

(5) Thc-tc'rms "covered transaction.*' "debarred,^' "suspended,''•'-incngjblcj" '•Tower tier covered transaction.'"
'Tattidpantv" "person.;' "primary covered tt;ansactionJ''-'priri"cTpdl,'^.'Tr6posal;" and "Voluntarily.excluded,*'
as used, in tJiis clause, HayetHemeanings set out'ln the-Definitions and Goveragesectibns ofihe rules

■ implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Paft;-76.
(6) Thclprospcc'livc prlmar)' participant'agrees by submitting this proposai;(cohtract) that; shoold'thc;proposed

coV'ercd transaction be entered mtd, li shalFnbt knowingly enter Into any lower iicr coVere"'d transaction with a
pcnwnwhq tsbebaTTcd. suspended, declared ineligible, or voiuntarljy e.xxluded. from participation in this
coycrc'd transaction. unlcss authorizc'd byOSI.

(7) The prospective primary p'articipani fufiHer agrees by submitting this'prqpo.sal iliat it wdl.mcjudeithc clause
titled "Ccrtificajion Regarding Debarment, Suspension; Ineljgtbilily and Voluntary Exclusion'- Lower Tier
Gbvered'Transactions," provided by OSl. wilhoutrmodificijlidii.' in ail.lower licr coVcrcd-tranMCtlons andTn'
al[ soTicilation.s for lower tier cqvcrcdTranSBCt[piis:

(8) A participant in a covered iransaciion may rely upon:a ceriificalion of a prospective participanl'in a lower tier
covered transaction thai it i.smdt dcbarr'cd. strspeh"dcd. ,incligible, or involuhthrlly cxchidcd from the covered
transactiori. unlcss.il knows'that the certification is erroneous.. A pariicipont.niny dccidcThc method and
frequency by which It dctenniiies ihc^bligiblllly of Its principals. Each part icipaiil.nia)'., but is nor required to.
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contnined in the foregoing shall be construed to rcquire.esiablishtnent o,f a system of records in order
10 render in good faith the ccrtificulion.rcquircd By this clause. The knowlcdge.nnd infcmidlibn.oPa
participant is not required to cxcccd that'which is noniially possessed by a prudent person In the ordinary'
course of:business dealings.

(10) E.xccpl for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of thcM insinictions. if.a particlpanl.in a covered
iransMction knowingly cnleis Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is .suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal government. OSl may terminate, this transaction for cause or (Icfaiill.

TTxhibiis D thru H

/^|j^.Tagc:^f7.
Inilitoy V Datc5Tyf/^2z.>
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPOiVSlBILlTY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Cerdficafioit Refiurdittfi Dcharmenl, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary' Covered Transactions

{!) Thc-prospcctivc. primary participant'certifies to ilic best of its knowledge and belief, that, it and its
principals; ^

(q) arc not presently debarred, suspended, proposed .for dctoriocm, declared/ineligible, or voluntarily .
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal dcpannVcnt or agency;

(b) linvc not witliin a ilircc-year period preceding this proposal (contrncl) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against tlicni for commission of fraud; or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, ailcmpting tp obtain, or pcrfomiinga public (Federal, State or local) lfnn.soclion
or a contract under a public transaction; violaiioh of Federal or State antitrust statutes or
comniission.of cmbcMlcrnent. ihcft, forgery, bribcty, falsificatioii or destruction pf records,
making false statements,, or receiving stolen property:

(c) arc not prcscniiy indicted for otherwise criininaily or civilly charged by a governmental.entity
(Federal. .State or local) with conimi.ssion of'any of the olTcnscs cnuincrated ,in paragraph (I) (b.)
pfitlvisccrtificalion; and

(d) havemoi,'Within o'lhfcc-vcar period prccedingithis application/proposal, had onc'.or inorc public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for caiise pr'^dcfaulV.

(2) Whcrc tlVe;prospcctivie primar}' participant>is unable to certlfynbtanybFlhe staicrncrits in.lhis
ccrljficatipti'. such prospcciivcjpaiiicipant shall attach ait cxplanalipn'to'this prpposar(cpntract).

CeriijicalioniRegardinp Debarment, Suspensiqttt lheligibWty and
yoluntary.Exciiision • Lower Tier Covered Transac/ians

(TOjBc Suppjicd ip.Low.er Tier liartlcipants)

By sjgnmg-.Bndsubmitting this.lowcr tier proposal (contract),.thc prospcctiye Ibwer tier participant, as,defined in
45 CKR Hart^76i certifies to thc;bcstpf its Imowledge and bciicf ihat'it.and iis.principals:

(a) arc no! presently debarred, suspended, proposcd.lbr dcbarment; declared ineligible,-or voluntarily
cXcludcdTrom participatipn in tJiis iraii.saciipit by any-XedwaJ dcparuncnl or agency. ,

(b) where the prospective jbwcftier participanliis unable to certify to anj^ofihcabove. such
prospccti.vc- participant shall attach an cxplnnaiipit tOiiJiis^prpppMlXcpnUBcO-

The prospcclivc'.iotV'cr tier participant.funhcr agrccs-by submitting-lJils prppbsal (contract) that it will include this
clauscxntjt|cd'"6crtification Rcgarding.Debarnicnt. Suspcnsipn, IncHgibijily..and Vpjuntory Exclusion - Lower
Ticr.Cp.fxjtyitT^n'sa.ctlons;-'' without niodiflcniion in all lower licr cpv.crcd transactions andiin till solicitations for
lower tii^ov/r<»d Irttwactions.

John.A,:Mohhih^-.CEO.
Jnlracfcr^eprcscmaiivc Signature Contractor^s'RcpresciUativc Titlc

SbutKwCstcrh Cbn'imuiii(y.Scrsuccs;vlnc.,. . ..
Conlfnclbr Name Oate

j^vhibhs I) thru M
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NEW IfAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC TN|XI ATI VF^

iStANPARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFIGATION REGARDINGTlli:
AMERICANS WITH piSABlUTIF^ ACrr GGiyiFTO

Tlic Coniractor-idcntrficd'jniS.ccironM J General Provisipns,ngrccs:by:slgnature ofihc'<2pniraclor^^
representative aSidcnilfied: In ScctiPtw 1.11 and 1.I-2 onhc:GencralFrovisionsrtblcJtecuie:ihc fdjlowin
ccrtificalioo:

By^sjgnlng'ond submiuing tlii.s proposaKcpnlroct) tlVcCpfe
■  pomply, vwfli fljloppUcabie provisions of thc Awpricflns wiihipisabiliiics

Jblin.A..MannlnB, CEQj

ontracwV^Rcprc^nl^

Southwestern Gomniuiiity Sen:lccs. liic.

CpntraciP^r's Rcprcscm

GbriiractorNamc Date

, ̂ hlbiis D thru H
/£j^:Pngc 6 or?

rriniols^^y// bate dy/ty^'
Award # D^^I■l•bbby9iR;:GFriiAi81.042:



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC.INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 1.03-227, Part C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227; Part C Environmenial Tobacco. Sinokc, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
ihal smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor racllity routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library sers'iccs to
children under the-agc of 18, if)the services arc funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or
local governments, by Federal grant; contract, loan, or loaji guarantee.

The law docs not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely.by Medicare
or Mcdicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatienl drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the'imposition of an administroiivc coinpHaiicc order on the responsible entity.

By signing and sub'm.ittingtthis application the applicant/graiuec certifies that it will-comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The:applicani/grajilcc:furthcr.a!grc^.that it.-will require the language of this certification be included in any
subawards which contain provisions fpr.thc children's ser%uccs and that all subgraniecs shalLccrtily accordingly.

John.A. Mohninfl. CEO

miractof/fepr^iMnta^^^

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Contractor'slReprcscntativ'e Title

Contractor Name Dale

.Initia
Award <» Dli-Elid607
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ibOoswCvQ-ij
6ms Comrci No. I^lti-Olu'
All Ollicf l-diluwyAfc OIkoIcic

NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIClNlTIATI VES

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

0:S. DEPARTMENT O.F ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED
PROGRAMS

OMB.Burden Disclosure Statement

Public rcponing.burden forihis collection of infomiation is cslirnated to average 15 minutes per response,
incIudingtilVc time for reviewing instriictionSt, searching existing data sourccs/gaihcring and-maintaining the data
needed, and ccmpleting-and reviewing the.cdllection.orinforniation. Send comments regarding' this burden
csllmatc.or any oiltcriaspccvof this coUcclion of information, including suggestions for reducing this burdcn,tto -
OfTice oflnfdnnatiori.Resources Management. Policy, Plans; and, OvcrsighV..Records Management" Diyisibn..H^^
422 - GTN. papcnvork^Reduction project(\(9jp-040p). U.S. Department of:Erierg>> 1000 independence Avenue.
S.W., Washingtcm. DC '20585;,and to'lhe Oificc.df Managcmcnt>and Dudgci\(pMBj,.Paper\v'ork:Rcductioit
ProJcct (!916-046o), Washington, DC.20503.

iSbuthvvcstern C^mniunlt^'ISetvldCT. Jnd "(Hcreinafler called the •'Applicant") HEREBY AGREES focompjy
wiih'Tiilc Vl.bfiihe Civil,■Righl'siA.ct.bP 1,9^4 (Pub. L. 88^352), Sectloh 1.6' opthe:nedera! Encrg>' Adniihistratioh
Act of 1.974 (Piib. L. 93-275): Secildrif401 of Ihc.Ehcrgy Reorganization Act.of 1974 (Pub. L.- 93-438), Title IX '
of the Education AniendmentVof, l,97'2,.as anien.dcd^(Pub. Li 92-3.V8., Pub. L. 9^-568, and 'P.ub.,'L..9!4-482')i. ,
Section SW.^pfithciRchabiHtalibn.'Actroif 1973 (Rub. L. 93-1:12),.lIVcLAg'c Dis'criminaliori Act of l.975"(Pub; L.,94-'
l35), TitlC:Vlll of,tiie..GivinRiglitS'Act^'6f-il.968 (Rub..L-. 90-284),-the^Depailment of Encrg>' Orgahizatidn-A"?l;pf
1.977 (Rub. L. 95-91), theThcrgy-C6hscr\:ation.and.Production Actof I976,.asiamcnded, (iPub.;L._94-385) and
Title- 10, Code of Pederal'Regulalions, Pan' 1040. In accordance-with the.above.idws'andTegulationsrissucb
pursuanlMhcrelo. the A'pplicaht.agree's to assure that'no person in liVc Uhilcd.Slates shall: on iheiground.bf raicc.
color, national origin, sex. age, ofdisaBilit)', be excluded from participation in,- be dcnicd'the benctlfs-oT, of'be
olhctSvlsc s.ubjcctcd to.'discriminatlon under any program or activityiirwhlch the ApplicantTeccivesJEcdcral
assistance from the. Depar^enbof Ener^..

Applicability and.',Period df OBllgaripn
In the case of any service; financial aid, covered employment', equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,,
or iihprovcd.with)Fcderal assjstaricc-extendc'd to the Applicant By the Dcpartmejit opEhefj^.'lJiis assurance
6bligafcs:the.AppliMriLfortHc.'pcri6drduriiig1wHich,T(xicraTw^ j'nithofcaw ofany ifansfep
such serN'icc; financiaf'aid.y,c;qu.ipmcht,iRro^rt)vbr slhiclurc, ihis hssurencc.pbU^tcs^hcitriind)^^
during which.Fcdcral assi.siahce i.s c.xtendcd. If any pcredrial !^pr6pcriy 3s' sd,pixividcd; .this dssurancciob"
ApplicahiTbr the period during-which it retains ownership or possession of the propehy,,|n all other cases, this
assiir^cc obligates the Applicant Tor thc-pcriod during whjch ihq'iFcd.craJ,assistance is;c>acndcd iq the^Applicani,
by the Depaftni,e.nVof,Energ>'.

Employment Practice
Where a priman' objective of the-Federal assistance is to provid.c cmploymeni.or \yherclhc Applicantjs
employment practices affect'the delivery of scr\'iccs in pro'grams or activities resulting frohi federal assistance
extended by the Dcpartniciu. ilic Applicant agrees not lb dlscrlmihafc on tJic ground of.racc', color, national
origin, sex, age, or disability, in its.cmplpyment practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not'
limited to. rccruilnient, advertising; hiring, layofror tenninaiion. promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay,
training and participation in upward mobilit)- programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilitic.';.

Siibrccipient A.ssurancc

The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom if subcontracts, siihgranis, or

Exhibii 1
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subleases for the purpose of providing any scr\"ice, rmancial aid, cquipiiicn(.,pi openy; or structure to conYply
with laws,and regulalions cited above. To this end. the subrecipiciu shall be required to sign.a written assurance
form: however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipieniio ensure compliance is not relicved by the-
collccliOM or sobmi.ssion of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Accc.ss lo Records ^

The Applicant agrees to compile and maintain infonnution pertaining to programs or activities developed as a
result oi;lhe Applicant's.receipt of:Fedcral assistancc from the Department of Energy. Such.infomtation shall
include, hut is not limited to thcTollqwing: (1) the ntanncr in which,services arc or will be provided and related
dala necessary for determining whclltcr any pcrsoits arc or will be dcnied suclt scrx'iccs on the basis of prohibiicd
discrimination: (2)'ihc. population eligible to bC; served by race, color, national origin, sex. age and disability: (3)
data rcgarding^covcrcd enipldyrhcht iiicludihg usc.o'r plahncd usc-of bilingual publlc.comacl empl,i)yccs.scr\:ing
beneficiaries of the. program where necessary to penttit eflecilve participaiibn by beneficiaries-unable to spcal^'br
understand English; (4) tJic localion df cxiilihg or pfppq.scd facilities connected with the program and related '
informatjon adequate for determining whether the location has-oj;will, ha.ve-the cffect'Of unnecessarily denying
access to any pcrson.on the basis.of prpliibilcd discrimination; (5) the present or proposed ntcmbcrship by race,
color, nalibnal qrigin, sc'x. age and disabi!iiy-in any planningoT advisoW bddy which li'an'inlcgi^l part of tHe
prqgram;.and (.6) any.additional \vi;itlciJ:daia.detcrmiited. by thc-DcpailmcnliOf Energ\' to be relevant .to the
obligation lo assure-compliancc by recipients, vvith laws-cited in the first'paragraph of this assurance.

rhc>AppHcanlvagrces'io subrriit requested data to the>Dcpa_rlmcnt.pfEttcrg>' regarding prograins and activities
developed by the Applicamifrom the use;pffFederal ossisiaitc,cTuiids extended by the Dcpartmem.offenergy.
.Facilities of lhc.Applicant.(includihg'lhe'physical plants; buildiiigsto'r'biher structures) and.all records, books;
accounts, and other sources ofiinfomirition pertm^ ip'thc.Applicanl'vcompjiancc witluthc;,^^^^^^^ rights.laws
shall be made available for inspcctionj during nonnal.bitsincss hours cn.requcsl of an ofllccr or entpjoyccofthc
Depanrneni orEncr^'- spccifjcally'auihqrizcd'.lbiniakCtsuch inspections. Insiruciibns In this: regard-will .be
provided by the. Director.,OfTice .of C,iyij Rights.. U.Sy DepartiTicnt of Energy.

This assurance Is giC'en in consideration of and.fdr.^ihe purpose ofiobiainihg any and all Federal grants, Joans,
contracls'(cxcluding procurcmcritrcbmrnclsjvpropcriy, discdiihls or blhcr'Fcdcr'al.nssislance cxlcndcd after the
date hereof,.to the,Applicants by the;pepa'rimeb.t pf incl.uding*iitstallment.payntents,on.accqunt.raftcr
such data-of application for Fcdcrai assistance which.are approved before such date: The.^Applicajtttrecpgnizes
and agrees tlial>such Federal assistance: will be,cxiendedrinrreliaiice upon the repre.senlailons'ahd.agreemehts'
made in this assurance, aitd thal'llie Unil^.Siitcsihalj Hav.c'lhc righlto seek judicia
assurance. This assurance is_biti<Jjng-on wciAppficaitt;. ihc^succcs^ transferees,vaiVd.assjgttccs,.as well as'thc
person(s) whose signaiufes appcar-bclow and who arc authorized to sign this assurance.on.bchalfof the
Applicani'.

Applicant Ccrtifieution

J'hc.AppH.canl certifies that if has'cqmplicd,.qrthat;wiiKin 9,0 days of the date of the grant, if will comply with
filihappiicablc^requiremcnts of'10 C.F.R-. § VQ^-5 (a copy will bcfurnished to the. Applicant upon written
requcst-tb'.DOE)!

Johii A. Manning. CEO , Siiinaiurc ~ Date

Southwestern Conununiiy Senuccs, Inc. ,
63 Gonimunily Way. Kccnc; NIH
603-352-75IT

r.xhibli |:
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDEIIAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND transparency ACT (KFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Kcdcral Funding Accounlabiliiy. and l!rflnsparcncy Aci (FI'ATA) requires prime awardccs of
individual Federal,grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October I. 2010, to
report on data related to cxceulivc compensation and associated ftrst-ticr sub-grants ©^$25,000 or more.
If llic initial award, is bciov^- $25,000 but siib^ucnt grant modifications result In a lotHi award equal to or
over $25,000..ihe award is subject-tO'thc.FFATA reporlingtcquirements, as of tKe date of the award.

In accordance .with I 170 (Reporfiiig'SuhUyvdrJ aiu/ ExeCuliVf: (fOinpensatiorr /n/oriitaiioii), the
New HampsiiireOffice'of StraicgiC'lnliiatives musrrcportTheTollpwing infonnatibn.for any siibaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

)) Name of entity
2) Amount oCaward

3) Funding agency '
4) NAIGS cbdc; for contracts/ CFDA program number for grants "
5) Program .source
6) Award title descriptive of the pyrpow of thc^fijnding acliqni
7) Ixtcationbfthecntit}'.
8) Principle place of pcr|pnnancc.
9) Uniqueidetitificr of the entity (D.yNS:-//)
10) Total compensation and.nanies.dFthe lop.five e.xcculives If:

a. More'than 80% ofannual grbss r^vehuciare from'tlie Federal gbvcmrncnt; arid those
rcvcnucs-are greater than $25M, annuajjy and,

b. ComfKhsaiipn information is not already available through reporting 16 ihc-SEC.

Prime grant recipients Tnust submil.TltXT"^,required data.by tlte end of the month, plus 3.0 days, tn-which
the award or awardlamcndmcnt'ls made;-

The Contractor identified .in Section IVS of the General.P.rpvisidnsag^esio comply with the provisions of
The Tedcral Funding Accounubillly and fra'tsparcncy Act., PubJ.ic Law i'09-282 and 'Public Law 110-
252. and 2 CFR Part \10'i_Reporfinii'.Suhinwrxi and Execufive. Compenxafion /nforjmli()n),.an6 further
agrees to have-the. Gohrraclor's representative, a.s Identified In Sections 1.11 apd 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Ceriificalidn:

The bclow.-hamed Contractor agrees to providc.nccdcd infpnnation as outlined above to tlie^Ncw"
llampshlrc Olificc ofSlrategic Initiatives'and to comply with all applicable pn^visiohs of ihc.Federal
Financjia^ccpunU^^ and Trahsparcncy-Acl.

John A. Maiming. CEO

(CbniraB(6?Rc^slhiialivcSi^^^ (Autlioflzcd Contractor Representative Name& Title)

Sbullrtvcsiefn Conimunity Scn'iccs. Jnc.

(Contractor Name) (Date)

Contrnctc

Date:

Page J
Award /t[MMr;E£600793.^.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OFSTRATEGrC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor idcnlified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS numberforyourcntity Is: 081^51-381

2. .In your business or organization's preceding conipleled fiMal year, did.'your business or organization
receive (I) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, subrgranis, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25.00,0.000 or more In uinuaj gross revenues
from'U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranis. and/or cooperative agreements?

X  NO YES

Ifthe.flQSM'crto #! above ts NOt atop here

If tbe answer (0 W above Is;VES, plcase ansiaer the following:

3. Docs the public have access to information about the cqmpcnsall^ pf'ihc executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange-Act
of) 934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal RcveriueCddc of 1986?

NO Y^ES

If the answer to #3'abbveu YGS, stop'berc

f

Iftheanswcr to #3 above Is NO, please answer the following:

4; The names and compensation of.lheifivc most'highly coinpcnsatcd-ofTiccrs in your.business or
organization are as rqllows:

Name: Amount:

ilame:- Ampunt:,.

Name: Ampuh.i:

Name: Amouitt:

Name: . , Amount;

Gpntractprjuilials^
Date:

Page 2 of /
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State of New Hampshire

department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 19, 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have bceri

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned,

Business ID: 6S5I4

Certificate Number: 0004894084

Ofi

Uk

O
0^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 16th day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



r^ERtlKIGATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Authority)

i/El&indfcdMmsL ■Inc.

(n«mc) (Corpornion Mine)
(hereinafter the "Corporation"), a .New HamosHirc; oorporalion. hereby certify that:

■  (JW'c)

(1) I am.ihc;duly elected and.acting Clcrk/Sccrciary of ilic Corporaiipp; (2) I maintain wd have custody and am
farnilior with the mihutc-books of the Corpo_ratipn; (3) I arn duly authorized to issue certificates with rcspcct'to the-:
cohtcntsofsuchib6dks;-(4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation Iravc authorized, on

(dole)

such authority to be in.forcc and cfTccl until June 30.2021.
(comraci tcnniniiion dale)

The pcrson(s)'holdirig thcbcldw listed positibn(s) arc authorized to execute and deliver orr behalf of the
Corporation ̂ y eootfact or other instrument for ihc sale of products and services:

(nt/nc) (j)osi(idn)

(nunc)

(5) thc:'mcct}ng of the,Board of,Directors was held in wrrnrHanee with New'Hinrnpshlrc
(juie ofdncoi^ra.iion)

law and;lhc-byjlaw^s of the Corporation; and (6) said auihorizatlonihas.not.bcen'modified, amended or rescinded
and c'dntiniicsTio full force and cfTcct as of the date hereof.

IN WJTNESJ'W^fl^REOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand as thciClcrk/ScMa^, ofthc cbrpof&tiM this19- (tovoif^Mav !—^ /2620_. ^

Glcrk/Sccrc
STATHOFiJi

0u:tiris:j2 rdav'ofiMa J 2020, h^fbre ine RarakGrdtcflu th'e undcrsigncd Officci',v. , ,
Amcr who acknowledged hcV/hjn^clSto&^thc-;.^

of SQulhwcstom^eommunitv.^ Inc.. a corporation andtthaj shc/he^as.gucl ,
.  ̂ •VT'i . _ ._-j .1 rlbeing authbri.^'.to.'dksp,,executed.the foregoing'insinimcni for thc'purppscs;thcrcini.contoincd.

IN WITNESS VfflEREOF. Vhcrcunlo set. my hand and pfficial seal.

Muk im
^^*** % ^Nofaiy Public/Justice of the Peace^Coraniissibn Expiration Date; | ̂11 ̂ '''1



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATTUMM/OOft-nnfJ

5/19/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS '
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERfS), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE. CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(los} must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and condUior>s of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

.. certificate holder in Ueu of such endorsemont(s). _ - ... _

PROOUCEft . - •

Clark • Mortenson Insurance
P.O. Box 606
Keene NH 03431

1

MNTACr . - ■ .
•MAwe;-' . - —

wc% i'-v.60>3S2-212l'" rAc M^i-603-357-8491
MWrsV- 'C8iZ4admln(B)ddrk-morlcn86n.'eom — . '

.  - INSURERISlAFFOnOINCCOVERACE. ! NAICf

JNSURER A*: Phliadelohla Insurance Comoanv - - . . .. .:"' 0 ■ ■

INSUR£0 SOUTHVVESTERNCOM

Southwestern Comm Services Inc
PC Box 603
Keene NH 03431

INSURER B: Maine EmDlovor-Mutua! Insurance Co.
-. .

INSURERC;- - .
-  ..

•NSURGRO: .

INSURERC: . '

INSURER F:

.COVERAGES ^CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1524385197 REVISION NUMBER: ..

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD"
'  INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT VMTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR _ TYPOOFWSORANCE

nwnirt'i
POUCY NUMBER

iPOUCV EF|f
IUM/ntVYYYY\ UM1T8 1

M

.  [

■X COMMERCIAL G NERAL LIAOILITY

)E r^loCCUR

1

j

PHPK2000602 f  6/3012020

1

i
j

1

6/30/2021 EACH OCCURRENCE .»1,000.000.,._ r.
1 CLAIMS-MAI ;pRn!l«FS?Fj^2^"^l - S 100.000 ...

MED EXP (Arty,or* per«on) . 16.000 _ . -

PERSONAL 6 AOV INJURY 81.000.000 _ ..

1 GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; ! GENERAL AGGREGATE 82.000.000

r □ 5^ 1 1 LCX j
.OTHER; 1

PROOOCTS - COMPAJP AGO 8 2.000.000

r 8

1 A 1 AUTOMOBILE UABHJTY ,! i PHPK»M0704

1

I

j

1  encv?020 600/2021

1j
fi6ti8lNE0&NdU luuT

' 1.000.000
X ANY AUTO ,, BOOLY INJURY (P«f perton) 8

ALL OWNED
.AUTOS 1
,HIRED AUIOS ' X

iSCHEOULEO
AUTOS 1
NON-OWNED !

•AUTOS

1

OCOILY INJURY (P«r Mcklwil) ̂ 8

PROPCRTY.QAMAQE- '
IPafABddmn- i s

8

A

f

X UMQRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB6S1B7e 6/31X2020 600/2021 1 EACH OCCURRENCE 8 2.000.000

3 AGGREGATE 8 2.000.000

loeo 1 * iRETENTiONSinoon 1
- " ~'l

8

f

I !

IWORKERS COMPENSATION '
|AND EMPLOYERS-UABILfTY y ,
ANY PROPRiCTOivpARTNCfi/ExECLmve rrri
OFFtCERMEMSER EXCLU0E07 1 N
(Uwi4«t»ry In NH) '
11 vM, dAKHbe unMr
OESCRIPTlOHOFOPCRATIONSbelow - •

NfA
1:

3102800768 f 4/1/2020 "4/1/2021" ^ 1 STATUTE '1 1 Er"*
e'lTeaCH ACCIO^ ^ 8 900.000

'e.L disease - EA EMPLOYEE 8 900,000
E.L, disease'- POLKrlr umit' 8 900.000

•  i ! j

1 OESCIUPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AddiUood Rtmartc* Sehtdill*, m«r ARtChM U mor« tpAC* l«
' workers comp laws apply for the state of: NH

all officers are included

1

certificate:holder CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
O^ce of Strategic Initiatives
Johnson Hall
107 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-8501

r

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOReCO RePRSSEMTATIVE

ACORD25 (2014/01)
© 1988-2014 ACORD corporation. All rights reserved.

The ACORO name and logo arc registered marks of ACORD
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Leone,
McDonnell
& Roberts

To the Board of Directors of (:i:[;iini:!n'UHi.t(:A(;(:ouN"rANTs
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., •
Keene. New Hampshire

1M)\'I-H • COiNCOKP

STK/MTUM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Repo/Tonffte.F/hancya/'Sfafemeffte

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the. consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Mbhacrement's Resbdnslbllltv for the Flhanciaf Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of Internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial .statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. /

Auditor^* Resbdhsfbllitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements* based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgmeni, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



dothton
In our'opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2019. and 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

IRepbrtdn'SummarizeW^
We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies'

.2018 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated September 17, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2018, is
consistent, In all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming .an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
Is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,' including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
November 5, 2019, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s intemal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report Is to describe the scope of our testing of Intemal oontrol over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestern Community
Services. Inc.'s intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

November 5, 2019

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



SOpfiWEStERN INfijAND RELATED COWIPiiNIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mXYv3j;-20i9 AND 2018

ASSETS

2019 2Q18

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable .

Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

$ 862,187

1.245.826

51,722
112,000
45.547

$  1,086,895
1.059,922

35,019

112,000
. - . - 45.547,

Total current assets 2.337.282. 2.339:383

PROPERTY

Liind and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Total property
•—r

19,188,701

554;976
220.291

19.964;058

14,438,178
549,305

99.617
15.027.100

Less accumulated depredation 7.938.217- 4.6B0.9S2

Property, net 12.025.841 10;i46il4«

OTHER ASSETS

Investment In related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits
Other assets

198,728
59,102

649,334
62,996
.384

88,706
188,523
517,853
51.996

384

Total oth^ assets 1.170.544 847.462

Total assets :15i533;667

CURRENT UABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accaied payroll and payrcfl taxes
Other current liabilities

Refundable advances

Interest payable
Current portion of long term debt

Suabilities AND net assetsi

$ 391,613

119,620

233,900.

138.740
ie'0.094
49.547

.227,221.

$  124,085
206,178

250.692
135,573
193,931

, .. -.-.^-216.438

Total current liabilities 1.341.635 1.126,897

NONCURRENT UABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above - 9.086.445 - e.273';983

Total liabilities 10.-428:686 9:400:880

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrtcUcns

With donor restrictioris

4.922.671
.182.916.

3.787.422
-  ii44.691

Total net assets 5.105.587 3.932.1.13

Total liabilities and net assets >$ 15.533;667- $  13';332:993

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SQtrrHWgSTEW<.CQMMUNITY:SER\nCES/tMC. AND R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019
Wrm PRIOR.YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATTVE INFORMATION.

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Govomment contracts

Prooram service fees
Rental income

Developer fee Income
Support

Sponsorship
Interest Income

Forplveness of debt
Miscellaneous

.. In-kind contrfbutforis

. Total revenues and other aupporl

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from reslrictlorts

EXPENSES

Program services
Homo energy programs
Education and nutrition

Homeless programs
Houslr^ services
Economic development services
Other p^rams

Total program services

Supporting actMtlos
Mariagemenl and general

Total expenses

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BEFORE
' LOSS ON SALE QF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

GAIN (LOSS) ON INVESTMENT IN UMfTEO PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor With Donor

Roatttefldhs' RartHctldns,

$ 10,872.702 S

2,485.405
995,380

326.658
70.893
7,153

388,849
120.697
241,499^

15,309,138

iS7;608^

5.238,483
2,659,830
1,994,872
2,319,865
721,370

.  894.986.

13,829,406

15.709,812

(313,068)

(6.481)

18.116

(301,433)

3.787.422

_1.436.682

125,833

126,833

(87,608)

38.225

38,225

38,225

144,691

2019

Total

$ 10,672,702

2.485.405
995,380

452.391

70,893
7.153

388.849
120,697

■  -241:499.

15.434,669

15:434:969:

.5,238,483
'2,659,830
1,994.872
2.319,865
721,370

■ 694.966

13,829,408

:1.880;40e;

15.709,812

(2741843)

(6.461)

18.116

(263,208)

3,932,113

1.436.682

2018

Total

$ 11.055.093
1.668.188
801.642
50,000
509,229
' 105,286

8,850

75,971
100,772

.  .161.852

14,736.992

•14.736.992'

4347.201
2.630,152
2.172.388
2,048,214

728,119
945.391

13,271,465

1.749:700 •

15.021.165

(284,173)

(4.583)

jm

(268.944)

3.397.772

m.2BS

$., 4.922.671. $.... .162.916 $ 5.105.587 $ 3.93Zi:i3:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SbUTHWESTBRN community:SEFW^

CONSOLIDATEO STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FbR:tHE:Y^RSENDEDMAV'31.-2di^A

awpANiBS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTrVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile changes In net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on sale of property
(Gain) loss on Investment In limited partnerships
Forgiveness of debt

(Increase) decrease In assets:
Accounts recelvabie

Prepaid expenses
Interest receivable

Due from related parties
Socurtty deposits

Increase (decrease) In nabillUes:
Accounts payable
Accrued iexpen^
Accrued payrcril and payroll taxes

' Other current liabilities

Refundabio advances

Interest payable

NET CASH (IJSED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVrTIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) decrease In escrow funds
Proceeds from sale of property
Purchase of property;

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACnVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds hom long term debt
Repayment of long term dsbt -

NET CASH USED IN RNANCINO ACTIVTTIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND.CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH TRANSFERRED FROM UMITED PARTNERSHIP

CASH AND CASK EQUIVALENTS. END OF YEAR

2016 2018

$  (263,208) $  (288.944)

580,115 467^929
6,481 4,583

.  (18,116) 188

(388,849) (75.971)

(185,904) 265,199
5.509 (3,439)

(4,480)
44,240 68,149
5,151 (2,623)

145,829 (53,220)
(106,905) (38.883)
(16,792) 9,657

3,167 (13,125)
(12,937) (44,414)

.. ... 49.547 -

(152.672) 268.626

(33,568) 5,646
215,000 .

(139,717) {,1®9lV

..41,715 (138:945):

40,048 76.143
- (160,029) (112,612)

(,119.081). (36.469)

(230,938) 115,212

1,086,695 947,176

. 26,230 24,606

S  682,187 ;$ i.d8e;89S

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerits
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SQUtt^CTERMhQMMUNrifv^^^

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED).
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31.'2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during Iha year for Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer of assets from newly consoddaled LP:
Prepaid expenses.
Land and buildings
.Furniture and fixtures

Casti escrow and reserve funds
Security deposits

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP

Transfer of llabdlUes from newly conaolklaled LP:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related parties
Long term debt

Total transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP

Total partners' capital from rwAriy consolidated LP

Partner^' capital prevlously rscorded as Investment in related parties

Total transfer of partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

203;408.c $

$  (22,212)
(2,373.335)
(188.237)
(297,913)
(16.151)

(12.328)
(894,504)
(96,338)

(164,110)

JdMmi

$: f2i877^):; (11176747);

$ 121,699 $ 10,810

20,347 11,199

86,181
1.332:075 304.073

% 328;082

1,^4;77,6: $'

61^006'- ;(53;8881

$■ 1436;682! ;S 823:265

Soo Notes to Consolidatod Rnanclal Statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018;

N0TE1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-

General

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. (the Organization) is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation fomied as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the eideriy, disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and
Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance In the,
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and Its conservation,
housing, " and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestem Community Services, Inc., and Its related corporations, SCS
Management Corppratipn, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Developmeht, Inc., and- various limited partnerships, as described
below. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support service and
assisting individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them
overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues Is derived from
governmental contracts.

jPrihc!pieli?6fC6ris6tldattd^
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestem

Community Senrices, Inc. and the fbllowing entities as Southwestem Community
Services, Inc. has both an economic Interest and control of the entities through a
majority voting interest In their govemlrrg board. All significant Intercompany
Iterns and transactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated
finanolai statements.

• j

■  SCS Management Corporation
■  SCS Housing. Inc.
■  SCS Development Corporation

'r- SCS Housing Development, Inc.
Drewsvllle Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsvllla)

■  Jeffrey Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Jaffrey) - Sold 2/1/19 -
;  ;■ Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)

V Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership/Keene
East Side)

> Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)
Consolidation began 8/16/17
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)
Consolidation began 6/30/18

.  ).■; Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates. Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook) Consolidation began 5/01/19



Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
and related companies have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require
the Organization to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net
assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

Net assets .without, donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-Imposed- restrictions' iand may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of .Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
Imposed by donors and grantors.. "Some donor rastrictibns are temporary In
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of tirrie. Other donor restrictions are perpetual In nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained In perpetuity.

As of May 31. 2019 and 2018, the Organization had net assets withoufdonor
restrictions and with dohor restrictions.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation In conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Acx^rdingly, such Information should be read in
conjunction with the Organi^tion's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2018 from which the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Orgariizatioh records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
It Is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time It is
recognized as revenue.

Jn-Klnd Suppbil
The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized If the
service received. creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.

10



Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in confonriity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to rnake estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could,differ from those estimates.

Gash and-Gash" Equivalents

For purposes'of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. .Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2019
and 2018. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

Notes Receivable

The' Organization has two notes receivable from an unrelated third party. The
notes receivables are stated at the amount that Is expected to be Qollected at
year end. Interest is accrued at a rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes receivable and reiated Interest receivable was $112,000 and $45,547,
respectively, at May 31, 2019 and 2018.

■Current VulnerabniWrpue to Gertaln^Cohcentrations
The Organization" is., operated in a heavily regulated environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules
and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies'. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding' .to pay for the related "cost, Including the additional,

.jadnrilnistrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, approximately 68% and 75%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from government agencies. The
future nature of the organization Is dependent upon continued support from the
governrnent.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial Institutions,
which at times may exceed -federally Insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses In such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

11



Property and Depredation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is
provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

10-40 Years

5-10 Years

7 Years

The use of certain assets Is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal govemment. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31,2019 and 2018
totaled $580,115 and $467,929, respectively.

Adyertislna
The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Revenue Recognition
Amounts" received frpm^ conditional ;grants and -coiitraets/recelyed: for specific?
purposes.ari8;;g0nerally.recdgnlzed as Income to the ejdentithaf related iexp'eh^s^
and' conditions? are 'Incurred or met;. .GJondltidnal .grants! received; brtdr to'ther
condltions:belng[met:are;Teported'as:r0fundable,advances; Gontribotioris df ca§h:
and other assets are reported as with donor restrictions if they are received'wlth
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, If a
restriction is fulfilled In the same period in which the contribution Is received, the
Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community -Services, Inc. and SOS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function Income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryforwards totaling $1,012;604 and $915,425 at May 31, 2019-
and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against future
taxable Incorrie and. If not used, will begin to expire In 2027. SCS Development
Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $579 and $607 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset

.against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire In 2022.
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The tax effects of. the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $212,768 $137,408
Valuation aliowanoe (212.768) (-137.408)

• Deferred tax asset $ - $ -

Drewsviile, Jeffrey, Troy Senior, Winchester, Keene East Side, Swanzey, and
Snow Brook are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are not payable by,
or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are included in the partners'
federal Income tax* retums based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax retums with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on Its income
tax retums for ail open years (tax years ending May 31, 2017 - 2019), and has
concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary In the
Organization's financial statements.

FalrValueof Flnanclallnstruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10', Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework In generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value Is a market-based measurement, not an
entity-specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market. Income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions In fair value measurements, Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

13



Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs In
situations where there Is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability Including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

:New Accounting Pronouncement

Oh August '18, 2016. FASBlssued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-ProfIt Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandability of net asset classification,
deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the
lack of consistency In the type of information provided about expenses and
investment retum. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these
statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.

Functiorial.Ailbcatlbh ofiExperi^^^
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an Indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other Indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The indirect cost rate Is 11.96% effective from June 1, 2017 through
May 31, 2020.

NOTE 2 BANK UNE OF CREDIT
The Organization'has a $250,000 revolvlng-.line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and Is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The
line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
the Interest rate was 5.50% and 4.75%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31, 2019 and 2018.
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NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

2019 2018

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note Is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96
Main Street). $ 145.647 $ 154,832

Non-Interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on "operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street). 31,589 32,147

5.5% note payable to a bank in monthly
Installments for principal and interest of $978
through March 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (People's United Bank.
Ashueiot). 20,672 31,143

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to" New
Hampshire Housing. Payment Is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pearl). 244,505 '244.505

I

Non-Interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there Is surplus
cash from which to make a paynhent, or until'
project Is sold or refinanced. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43
Central). . 376,363 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank In monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019 and
is now due December 2026. Under the
amendment, interest rate Is 4.94% and monthly
installments for principal and Interest are $1,957
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Milestones). 146,515 162,223

15



2019 2018

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured ..
by real estate of the Organization (ID Bank,
Keene Office). 2,212,288' 2,247,266

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on
contract. The note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000

4% note payable to a development company, In
annual Interest Installments only through March
2016 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and Is
classified as current. The note'Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 63,000 63,000

4% note payable to a development company, In
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2019'and Is
classified as current. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 45,000 45,000

Note payable to a bank In monthly installments for •
principal and Interest of $2,463 including Interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted In an

interest rate of 4.67% and 4.07% at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The note Is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office/Community Way). 401,891 414,567

5.19% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TD Bank, 46 Central
Street). 94,733 100,254
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2019 2018

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning In
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note Is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 125,000 150,000

Non-Interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property Is-used for low Income

housing through January 2025. The note Is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
112 Chariestown Road). 75,000 90.000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing In annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remaining balance Is
due. The note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 '794,189

Non-Interest bearing note payable to a county In
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of
the balance Is forgiven each year through 2032
v4ien the remaining balance becomes due. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG, Second Chance). 344.63& 363,677

6.99% note payable to a finance company In
monthly Installments for principal and Interest of
$652 through June 2019. The note Is secured by a
vehicle (TCP. Econoiine Van). 1,293 8,741

5.54% note- f^a^bfe to a fihahce comp^iny In
monthly insfellmehts for prindpai and interest: of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econollne Van). . 19,287 24,564
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2019 2018

Jaffrey - 30-year deferred note payable to the
Town of Jaffrey, New Hampshire. Payment of
prihclpal and accrued interest at 1% were deferred
until the note matures In June 2027. The note was

secured by land and buildings. The balance
included cumulative accrued interest of $53,651
(CDBG). Jaffrey was sold during the year ended
May 31. 2019 and the balance was forgiven. - 303,651

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and Interest of $485
through August 2027. The note was.secured by
land and buildings (TD Bank). Jaffrey was sold
during the year ended May 31. 2019 and this note
was paid in full. - • 41,099

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures in June 2029. The

note is secured by real estate of the Organization'
(CDBG). 640,000 640.000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund »
energy efficiency. improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140,210 140,210

Keene East Side - Nori-interest bearing note
payable to a county In New Hampshire. Payments '
are deferred until the note matures in December

2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG).- 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-Interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and -capital Improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 10% of the note Is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years In
January 2026. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 185,899 178,172
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2019 2016

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficiency Improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 228.934 228,934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple Interest
mortgage note payable to the New. Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal
and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower
determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 282,720

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing ' (AHF), due
Seplemljer 2043, payable in monthly installments
of $1,698, including interest at 2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use i^estrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 377,110 r

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in monthly Installments of $2,002
Including Interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 446,561

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero Interest
mortgage note payable to New Hanipshire
Housing (AHF), due June 2034, prlricipal and
interest payable at the sole discretion of the lender
frorh the excess cash of the borrower determined

by formula, secured by the Partnership's land and
buildings, subject to low Income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year lenm.of the mortgage. 237,173 -
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2019 2018

Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF). due May 2032,
payable in monthly installments of $370, Including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's
land and buildings, subject to low income housing
use restrictions for the 30 year term of the
mortgage note (NHHFA).

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero Interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of

the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA).

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero Interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under
the aforementioned agreement, the loan Is due
upon demand with interest accrued at a rate of
11.67% for the period the funds were outstanding
(Federal Home Loan Bank).

Total long-term debt before unamortlzed deferred
financing costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Less current portion due within one year

50,436 53,826

92,058 92,058

iiSQ.OOQ 150.000

9,332,609 8,490.421

..-(18.943V

9,313;666 8,490.421
227.221 216.438

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2019 is as follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Total

$

Amount

227,221

121,051
115,864

115,596
118,605

8.634.272

;$_i^3.3_2m9
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NOTE 4 OPERATING-LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicies under non-
cancelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2024. Monthiy iease payments range from $60 to
$3,625. Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$144,880 and $136,963 respectiveiy.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2019 on the above leases are as
foilov^s:

Year Ending
May 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Total

Amount

$  78,745
21,677

18,318
1,050

720

120

I

note 5 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

At May 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that Its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $131,864
and $130,140, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Conrimunity Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing,
Inc. and SOS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SOS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners often limited partnerships formed to
develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed. repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $14,151,000 and $15,553,000 at
May 31,2019 and 2018, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $35,831,000 and
$41,158,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.
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The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federai
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulations, if costs were found not to' have been Incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required
to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
if any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May
31. 2019 and 2018.

NOTE? related: PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, SCS Housing. Inc. managed
ten limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled

,  $313,466 and $322,973, for the years ended May 31, 201'9 and 2018,
respectively. - Additionally, SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entitles totaled $59,102 and $188,523, respectively, at May 31, 2019
and 2018.

NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial Interests in the following companies:

2019 2018

CItyside Housing Associates, LP
Marlborough Homes, LP
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP
Wanwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP
Westmill Senior Housing, LP
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing

Associates, LP
Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP
Pilot Health, LLC

$  (9,500) $ ■ (9,492)
(11) 8

(12,503) (12.491)
(1.897) (1.715)

(21) (17)
222,842 222,846

78 90
- (31,190)

p (60,716)
(260) (243)

- (18.374^

$ mM
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SCS Housing Development, inc. Is a 0.01% partner of Cltyslde Housing
Associates, . LP, Marlboiough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, WanA/ick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Associates, LP. a 0.10% partner of Railroad Square Senior
Housing Associates; LP, and a 1% partner in Westmill Senior Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

SCS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during the years ended May 31. 2019 and 2018.

The remaining 99.99% ownership ■ interest in Swanzey Township Housing
Associates, LP and Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP were
acquired by Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending
May .31, 2019 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership is included in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
remaining 99.99% ownership Interest in Winchester Senior Housing Associates.
LP was acquired by Southwestern Community Service, Inc. during the year
ended May 31, 2018 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership is
included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31,
2019 and 2018.

Southwestem Community Services, inc. was a 14.3% member of Pilot Health,
LLC during the year ended May 31, 2018. Pilot Health was terminated during
the year ended May 31, 2019.

Summarized financial Information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31. 2019 and 2018, consists of the following:

2019 * 2018

Total assets $: 32^782;

Total liabilities

1

47,461

Capital/Member's equity
•—

^3.291 M4.679V

$ 5.715

Income $ 426 $: 84171,3'

Expenses ^661.. .  81:478

Net income (loss) J  3.235
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN
The Organization maintains a 'tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internai Revenue Code. All smpioyees who have had at
ieast 30 days of service to the Organization are eiigibie to contribute to the pian.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year "of service. Empioyer contributions are at the Organization's
discretion and totaied $296,009 and $289,969 for the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS
Net assets with donor restrictions are availabie for the foiiowing purposes:

2010 2018

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund

Stand Down

GAPS/Wann Fund

Transport
HS Parents Association

EHS

5,973 $

91,908
47,260
6,575

31.200

21,327
4,963

118,401

Total net assets with donor restrictions

NOTE 11 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT
'  During the year ended May 31, 2019, the Organization realized forgiveness of
, debt income In connection with notes payable to Community Development

Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance Authority.
Forgiveness of debt income totaied $388,849 for the year ended May 31, 2019.

During the year ended May 31, 2018. the Organization realized forgiveness of
debt income in connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD
and New Hampshire Housing. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $75,971 for
the year ended May 31, 2018.
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NOTE 12 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. acquired a partnership Interest In three low-income housing limited
partnerships: Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook. The amount paid for the
partnership interest in Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook was $1 each, and
at the time of acquisition, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the
general partner. The following Is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the
partnership at the date of acquisition:

2018 2019

Winchester Swanzev Snow Brook;

Date of Transfer 08/16/2017 06/30/2018 05/01/2019

Cash

Security deposits
Cash reserves

Property, net
Other assets

$  24,508

11,467

164,110

990,842
.12.328.

$ 12,856
7,330

119,061
1,330,231

.6.436.

$13,374
8,821

178,852
1,211,341
- 15.776.

Total assets 1.203.255 1.475:914; 1.428.164^

Notes payable
Other Liabilities

304,073
- -.22.009.

666,902

87.108

.  665.173
-140.1-19

Total liabilities 326;082. .  754ioi;o: .-v805i292

Partners' capital $77ii73 721-^04 622,872

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investment in related parties .. f53.8881 31.190 60.716

Partners' capital transferred S 753.094 $683:588.
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NOTE 13 AVAILABIUTY AND LIQUIDITY

. The following represents Southwestern Community Services' financial assets as
ofMaySI, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents •  $ 882,187 $  1,086,895

■Accounts feceivalDle 1,245,826 1,095.486
Due from related party 59,102 188,523
Notes receivable 112,000 112.000
interest receivable 45,547 45,547
Cash escrow and reserve funds ■  ■849:334 517.853

Total financiai assets 3.193.996 3.046:304

Less amounts not available to be used
within one year:

Due from related party
Notes receivable
Interest receivable
Reserve funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

(59,102)
(112,000)
(45,547)

■f729.y6V

:f946.135)

(188.523)
(112,000)
(45,547)

(444.980)

■,(791.050)

■ S- 2.247^861. ($:.j2.255;254

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$1,224,000 and $1,183,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 14 RECLASSIFICATION
Certain amounts and-accounts from the prior year's financial statements.were
redassifled to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENTEVENTS.
Subsequent events" are "events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing, financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that , provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through

. November 5, 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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;SQUTHWESTERN:£bM RELAtED COMPANIES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAV 31. 2019:

NOTE 1 BASIS OF: PRESENTAtiON
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
Includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Cortimuntty Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal govemnlent for the year ended May 31, 2019, The
Information in this Schedule Is presented In accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.. it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes In net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 :SUIVIMARY,OF SIGNIFICANr AeCOlJNnN6 POLICIES
Expenditures' reported on" the "Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of'
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain typies of 8>q>endltures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minlmis Indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. •

NOTE 4 'FOOD-DONATION
Nohmonetary'assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair Value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

note 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

•. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. had no subreclpients for the year ended
May 31, 2019.
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S6UTHWESTERN:c6lVIIVlONITYiSERVICES/ll^./^g

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDltlNd STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
Keene. New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United
States of America and the standards applicable to fTnancial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards isisued by the Comptroller General of the United Stales, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services. Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as. of May 31.' 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 5, 2019.

Iritemal Gdntfbl Over Flhanclal Reporting

" in planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate'ln the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services.
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s Internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. ■ A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in Internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged vrith governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this, section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.-

Gompiiance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its'compliancG with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance .with v/hich could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no Instances of honcompllance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Ruroose of this Report.
The purposd bf.thls rep^^ Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's Intemal control or on"compliance. This report Is an integral part of an audit
performed. In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards In' considering the
Organization's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose. ^

November 5, 2019

Woifeboro, New Hampshire
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE:

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. .
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on CompllanceTor Each li/lialor Federal Program
We; have audited; .Sduthwestem' -Gbmrhunlty Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire n'ohprofit
corporation) and related companies' compliance with ;the types of compliance requirements
described in.the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Sputhvyestem Cornmunity Services, Inc.'s major.federal programs for the year ended .May
31, 2019. SpOthwestem GOmmunily Service'ai Inc.'s majbr federal programs are Identified liii^e
summary of auditors" results section ofthe accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. '

Management's Responslbilitv
Management Js.tresp^nsible for compliance with the,^federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and' conditions of its federal awards appHcable to its federal programs,

AudltOrs'lResporislbllltv

"Our respphslbllity Isrfq express an opinion on compliance for^each of Southwd^em Community
Services" ihc.'s major federal programs based on our audit" of the types; of &mpjjance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. bode of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
(he audit 'tp' obtain reasonable assurance about vyhether inoncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a djroct.a.nd material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit Includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
^ou{hw.e,s"tern Community Seivlces, Inc.'s compliance.
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'Oblriiori oh'EacH MalofFederal Prbgr^
;ln our opinipn; Southwestern l^^mmunity Services, Inc. compliecl, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major-federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Report on lriternai'Controi;6ver GoniDilance
Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Is responsible ;for establishing and
rnairitalnlng effective Internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above; In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Southwestern 'Community Services;, Inc.'s ihtem^al icOhtrol; over coriipllahce' with the types; of
requiiemenls that could have a .direct- and mateliall ■effect bn' eabh 'major federal' pit>'grarn> to
determlhe jUie^audilihp pipoedures that ararppprbprjat& in the clfcum^ of
expresblhg ari 0 ohycofripllahce for each major federat prDgram arid to te§t and report on
intemai;cprifrol overiepmpliance jri accbrdahce with tltb y
of expfessjrig an ppirilpri on the effectiveness of Ihlemai OTotrol over^ Abcordingiy,. we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness.Of •SbUthwe^emi Cbmmunlt^
intemal control over compliance.

AydefiClen]^^^ Irt Iritemarcpntro! Over (^mpliancp exlsts^^ .design"or pperatlbn pf a.control
pyefsc^;mplla^ TOt;alldw rhahagemeritoremployees;;iri the-normalcourse of performing
ithelr asslgiied furictibnsV .to prevent; pr'defect arid correct, -noncompllance with a', type of
'CQmp!iance:,re.qulrementof-;a federal iprogramion atlmelyHbasIs;, Aiiriaterial weakness in Intemal'
control over •compliance Is a deficiency; or comblnatiori of deficiencies in Intemal control over
compliance, such that there Is a reasonable possibility that material inoncomplianceywlth a'type Of
compliance requirement of a federal prograrn will hot be ipreventedj.or detected and corrbcfed; pri
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemal contrbrpver' cbmpilance' is a deflclehcy, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control:-over'compliance'with ,.a type of bbrtipjlandb
requirement of a federal program that is less severe thanva; material weakness in Iriterhal :c»ntrpli
over compliance, yet Impbrtant enough to merit attention" by those charged with gpveiharice.'
Our consideration of Jntemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to Identify ail deficlericies In intemal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deflclencles;:We did'not Identify
any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we corisider to be matbriefweakrispses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not Identifieb.

^e puf^sie of this report on lriteitial coritro!i;byer:^^ solely ̂  deiscribei the scope of;
puhteMfig; of Ihtemar (^ntrpl end) Uie results testifig 'based on the
requlieBents of the Unffbrm' 'G.ufdan^l Accbfdirigly; tfils; report Is; riot 'suftable for. any bthef
purpose.

Novembers, 2019
Wblfeboro, New Hampshire
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SbUrHWESTERN GdMM

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED IVIAY.31.^20i9

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the oonsolldated financial
statements of Southwestem Community Services, Inc. were prepared in accordance with
GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported In the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No .Instances of noncompljance material to the consolidated financial staternents of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit. •

4. No significant deficiencies In internal control over, major federal award programs are
reported In the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on liitemal: Control Over •.Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknessesare reported'.

5. The aud[tors' report on coropliance for the major federal award programs for.Sppthwestem
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordarice with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a). ' *

7. The programs tested as major programs yy0re:j U.S. papajSrieht- of Health and 'Human
Services;: Low-lht^me Hdrhp, Enargy Assistance, .9^;568,; and U.S. Department of
Transportation; Formula Grants forRufal Areas, 20.509.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000..

9. Southwestem Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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INC. AND RELATED COMPANtES

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

There'were no findings or questioned costs that were; required to be reported in the Schedule
of Flndlhg^and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2018.
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To Ihe Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report oh the Flhancihl-Statemenis

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services. Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2018 and 2017,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated statements of activities and
functional expenses for the year ended May 31, 2018.

Manaaemenfs'Responsibliitv for iho Flnanciaf Statements
Managemeht "is responsible fof'the preparation "and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of,America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

. Auditors'Responslbllliv
Our respdhsibility is'to~express an opinion on these consolidated financial.statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from .material

misstatement. •

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors* judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In rhaking those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in ail
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In
the United States of America.

Repdrt'ori Sdmmaj^zetf CQ/np^iraf/ve7fff6^af/Qn

We have previously audited Southwestem Community Services. Inc. and related companies'
2017 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements In our report dated October 11, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative Information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31. 2017, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other Information

Our audit'was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The'accompanying.schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Pn'ncipies, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the Schedule
of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of- management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other RedoHlha-ReaWredbv-GdvemmeniAudlUna Standards-
In accordance with Govemment Auditing'StandardsTwe'have also Issued our report dated
September 17. 2018, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of'Its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters^ The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering
Southwestem Community Services, inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

September 17, 2018
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



:SQUtHWgSTERN:COMMlJMlTYSERWCE9JNC.ANDRELATEDCQMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY3i/26i8ANbV26l7.

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equtvaients

201B

$  1,066.895

2017

947.175
Accounts receivable 1,095,486 1.360.685
Prepaid expenses 35,019 19,252
Notes receivable 112,000 112,000
Interest receivable 45.547 -41.097

Total current assets 2.374.947 2.480.179

PROPERTY -

Land and buildings 14,438,178 13.335.396
Vehicles and equipment 549,305 703,635
Furniture and fixtures 39.617.. .25.756

■ Tolal property- 15,027,100 14;064J7_87

Less accumulated depreciation '^.999.952, 4^570:7M

Property, net 10.146.148 " ■9;4fl5i097:

OTHER ASSETS
Investment In related parties 88,706 142,782
Due from reiatad parties 152,959 219,106
Cash escrow and reserve funds 517,853 359,589
Security deposits 51,996 37.908
Other assets 364 384

Total other assets
\

811.696 759.769

Total assets $  13,332.993 I2;724;ff76:

UABILfflES AND.NET ASSCT^
CURRENT LIABIUTIES

Accounts payable 124,085 $  166,495
Accrued expenses 206,178 233.842
Accrued payroll and payroO taxes 250,692 241.035
Other current liabilities 135,573 146,696
Refundable advances 193,931 238,345
Current portion of long term debt 216,436 -'211.313

Total current llablllUes 1,126.897 1.239.728

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term debt less current portion shown above 8.273.983

Total llabilttJes 9,400,880. • 9.327:203

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 3,774,641 3,243,933
Temporarily restricted 157,472 153.839

Total net assets 3,932,113 .3:397:772

Total liabilities and net assets $  13.332^993 :$ :i2;72:4:975

See Notes to Coneolldated Financial Statements
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'SOUTHWESTERM COMMUNrtV SERNflCESVlNC.'ANP RELATgp-CQ^^^^

CONSOUOATEO STATEMENT OF ACTIVmES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018
VVifH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARiab COMPARATKrE lNI^RM

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Govemmenl contracts

Program senAce fees

Rental Income

Developer tee Income
Suppori
Fundralsing
Intoroct Income

Forglveneas of debt
Miscellaneous

In^Ond contdbuilorts

Total revenues and other support

. NETASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support and
r>ot assets reioasod from roslrlctions

EXPENSES

Program servicos
Home energy programs
Education end nutriUon

Homeless programs
Housing servicos
Economic development services
Other programs

Total program services

Supporting actlvltiss
Marugomenl and general

Totelexpenses

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

'  LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

(LOSS) GAIN ON INVESTMENT IN UMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OP YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

UnreaWcted

8 11,055,093

1,868.168

601,642
50,000

369,363
105,266

8,959

75,971

100,772
161.852

14,617,126

116.233

14.733.359

4,647.201

2,530,152

2,172,388

2,048,214

728,119
■ MS391-

13,271,465

M.749;700v

il"s"!b2l.1l68

(287,606)

(4.563)

(186)

(292.577)

3,243,933

823:285.

4;007;216.

Tomporarily ini8
• Reatrlctod Total

S 11,055.093

1.866,186
801,642
50,000

509,229
105,266

8,959
75,971

100.772
.  161,652

119,666

119,666

(116,233)

3,633

•3:633'

^1»;839

153.839

14,736,992

2321 14.739.992

4,647,201

2.530,152
2,172,388

2,048,214
728,119
045391

13,271,465 .

1.749:700-

^1S.()21.i6S.

(284,173)

i(4;»3);

-(288^944)

'3,397^772

823:285'.

4:221.057'

2017

Total

9.722.823

1,862,236
661,932

'  265,000

400.116
60.170

6,699
90.146

140.537
162.966

13392.627

3.812,708
2.367.558
2,056,525

2.073,178
571365

063.9'17

11,645,751

-■ T.^o:iQe
•13,621357

;(229,23p)

!(16,355)

.  132.782 •

T11S:603)

V3.5i3.CT6:

3,513.575

S  3:774:641 $: iS7;472' '3.932T113; 3.397.772'

So* Notes to Consolidated Pinanclal Statomants
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNnV SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES^

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR ENDED MAY 3'l;.2dV8 AND'MI?..

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to
net cash from operating ecUvdies:
DepredaUon and emorlizalion
Loss on sale of property
Loss (gain) on Investment in limited partnerships
Forgiveness of delit

(Increase) decrease In assets;
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
' Interest recelvabie
Due from related parties

Security deposits
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other ourreni liabilities

Refundable advances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
■Decreaae (IncrBase) In escrow hinds
Proceeds from sale of property
Purchase of property

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACnVTHES
Proceeds from long term debt
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET'INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

$  (288,944) $ (115,603)

467,929 415.720
4,583 19,355

188 (132,782)
(75.971) (90.148)

265.199 (258,318)
(3,439) 4,161
(4,460) (4.480)
66,149 73,417
(2.6M) (1,945)

(53,220) 11,248
(38,863) 87,479

9.657 22,653
(13.125) (32,998)
(44.414) . 37.281

288,626 35.040

5,846 (18,222)
- 6,000

(142J91) (247.590)

(136.945) :(259;'826V

76,143 106,019
.  . (112,612). ...(122,890)

. (36,469) ... (i6.87-l)

1'16.'212 (241.651)

,947;175 1,188;e26v

241508 ...

$' 1.086.695 :$ 947i1751

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SQimWESTERt^'nOMM

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31.-2018 AND 2Q17

2018 2017

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for Interest !$— ■141:265

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACIWITIES

Properly financed by long term debt

Transfer of assets from newly consolidatdd LP:
Prepaid expenses
Land end bulldlnga
Furniture end fbrtures
Cash escrow and reserve funds
Securtly deposits

Total transfer of aaseta from newly consolidated LP

Transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Long term debt

Total transfer of liabilities from newfy consolidated LP

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

Partners' capital previously recorded as Investment In related parties

Total transfer of partners' capital from newty consolidated LP

{12,328)
(8&4,504)

{96,338)
{164,110)

(11.467)

^33:i00'

— •
— -

;$ .{1il78:747y
■

■ ^

$  10,810 $
11,169

.  304.073, .  .. -

$- .^'26'.b82. !$ .

$  877,173 S -

(5l888)

$,...823,285 I  ,

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE-YEARS ENDED MAV 31. 2018 AND 2017

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PQ

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (the Organization) is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and
Sullivan counties' of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation,
housing, and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestem Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations, SCS
Management Corporation, SOS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described
below. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support service and
assisting Individuals and families In achieving self-sufficiency by helping them
overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues Is derived from
governmental contracts.

Baslsof'Accoiihtlhai
The consolidated financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
and related companies have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.'

PrinclbliBS of'Gorisoildatlon '
The consolidated' financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. and the following entities as Southwestem Community
Services, Inc. has both an economic interest and control of the entities through a

u  majority voting interest in their governing board. All significant Intercompany
items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated

finaricial statements.

*  SCS Management Corporation
■  SCS Housing, Inc.
■  SCS Development Corporation
■  SCS Housing Development, Inc.
■- Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
■  Jeffrey Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Jaffrey)

Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
■  Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene

East Side)
• Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)

(2018 only)



Basis of.Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Accounting
Standard Codification No. 958-210, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Organizations. Under FASB ASC 958-210, the Organization is required to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets,
and permanently restricted net assets based upon the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions.

■Unrestricted: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.
Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of
the Board of Directors.

TemboraYilvVRestricted: Net assets whose use is limited by donor-Imposed
stipulations that will either expire with the passage of time or be fulfilled or
removed by actions of the Organization.

. Permanently Restricted: Net assets reflecting the historical cost of gifts (and
ihliertain circumstances, the earnings from those gifts), subject to donor -
imposed stipulations, which require the corpus to be invested in perpetuity to
produce income for general or speqfic purposes.

As of May 31, 2018 and 2017, the Organization had unrestricted and temporarily
restricted net assets.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2017 from which the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advan^s
The Orgahizatlbh records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is
recognized as revenue.

ilh-Kihd SuDDoft
The Organization records various types of In-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional sen/ices are recognized if the
service received creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals .possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.



Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of-assets and liabilities and disclosure of.
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Egulvalerits.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
Investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable.
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2018
and 2017. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

Notes Receivable
The Organization has two notes receivable frpm an unrelated third party. The
notes receivables are stated at the amount that Is expected to be. collected at
year end. Interest Is accrued at a rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes receivable and related interest receivable at May 31, 2018 was $112,000
and $45,547, respectively. At May 31, 2017, the balance of the notes
receivable and related Interest receivable were $112,000 and $41,067,
respectively.

Gurrent.Vulherabliltv Duetto dertaln CQncentrations
The Organization" Is operated In a heavily regulated, environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules
and regulations of fedWal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur w]th little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including * the additional
administrative burden, to comply with a cliahge. For the years ended May 31,
2018 and 2017, approximately 75% and 73%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was. received from government agencies. The
future nature of the organization is dependent upon continued support from the
government.

-Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

.  10



Property and Depreciatld^
Purchased property arid equipment arie stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generaliy capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater .than one year. Depreciation is
provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 - 40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5-10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and Impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31,2018 and 2017
totaled $467,929 and $415,720, respectively.

Adveftrslhd

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

iRevenue'vfecoartltionf
•Amounts received from conditional grants and;contracts receiyed for specific
jpurposes .are generally: recoghizedras Income to the extent thatirelated expenses
ano-cpndiU.onsTareMncurred or-met. Conditional: grants receiV.e^ prior to the
conditions being met are reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash
and other assets are reported as restricted If they are received with donor
imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, If a
restriction Is fulfilled In the same period in which the contribution is received, the
Organization reports the support as unrestricted.

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SCS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal Income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
Income tax on their exempt function Income.

SCS Housing, Inc., , SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryforwards totaling $915,425 and $840,803 at May 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against future taxable
income and. If not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS Developrrient Corporation
has federal net operating loss carryfonA/ards totaling $607 and $629 at May 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset against
future taxable income and, If not used, will begin to expire in 2020.

11



The tax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31. 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $137,408 $126,215
Valuation allowance (137.408^ (126.215^

Deferred tax asset S $

Drewsviile, Jaffrey, Troy Senior, Winchester and Keene East Side are taxed as
partnerships. Federal Income taxes are not payable by, or provided for these
entities. Eamings and losses are included in the partners' federal Income tax
returns based on their share of partnership eamings. Partnerships are required-to
file Income tax returns with the State of New Hampshire and pay an income tax at
the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the rrilnimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions In financial statements.
Management has "analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income
tax returns for iall open years (tax years ending May 31, 2015 - 2018), and has
concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary In the
Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial thstriirihente

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an
entity-specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements. Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the Inputs used In measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available In
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices In active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

12



Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation.methodology are unobservable inputs In
situations where there Is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those Instruments.

Functlbnai AlioMtibh'bf Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated
among the program services and supporting activities benefited.

note 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has'a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank,
interest Is due monthly and Is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The
line Is-secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May 31, 2018 and 2017,
the Interest rate was 4.75% and 4.00%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31, 2018 and 2017.

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2018 and 2017 consisted of the following:

2018

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
In monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA. 96
Main Street).

Nonnnterest bearing mortgage payable to.
Community Development Finance Authority, In
quarterly principal payments based on operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the speclOed real estate. The note Is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street).

4.5% note payable to a bank In monthly
installments for principal and interest of $978
through March 2021. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (People's United Bank,'
Ashuelot).

2017

$  154,832 $ 163.926

'32,147 32,147

31,143 42,099

13



Non-Interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pearl). 244,505 244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment Is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until
project Is sold or refinanced. The note Is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43
Central). 376,363 , 376,558

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
. amended during the year ended May 31. 2018 and
is now due December 2026. Under the

amendment, interest rate is 4.94% and monthly
Installments for principal and interest are $1,957
The note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Milestones)., 162,223 177.050

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly Installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note Is secured
by real estate of the Organization (TD Bank,
Keene Office). 2,247,266 2,280,750

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire •
County in New Hampshire. Payment Is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on
contract. The note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000

A% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2018 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 63,000 63,000
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4% note payable to a development company, in
annual Interest Installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2018 and Is
classified as current. The note-is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 45,000 45,000

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $2,463 including interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted In an

interest rate of 4.07% at May 31, 2018 and 2017.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (TD Bank, Keene Office/Community
Way). " 414,567 426,734

5.19% note payable to a bank In monthly
Installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TD Bank, 45 Central
Street). 100,254 105,495

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning In
January 2015 10% of the note Is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 150,000 175,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of' Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
112 Charlestown Road). 90,000 105,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Finance Authority In annual payments
in the amount of 50% of annual surplus cash
through July 2042 at which time the remaining
balance is due. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

15



Non-interest bearing note payable to a county In
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of
the balance Is forgiven each year through 2032
when the remaining balance becomes due. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG, Second Chance). 363,677 382,818

3.99% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $355, The
note was paid off in May 2018, The note was
secured by a vehicle of the Organization (Ally, Kia
.Soul). . - 4.070

6,99% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$652 through June 2019. The note is secured by a
vehicle (TCF, Econoline Van). 8,741 15,688

5^54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van). 24,564 29,572

Jaffrey - 30-year deferred note payable to the
Town of Jaffrey, New Hampshire. Payment of
principal and accrued Interest'at 1% are deferred
until the note matures In June 2027. Th'e note is
secured by land and buildings. The balance
Includes cumulative accrued interest of $53,651
(CDBG). ' 303,651 300,645

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and Interest of $485
through August 2027. The note is secured by land
and buildings (TO Bank). 41,099 43,533

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures in June 2029. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG). 640,000 640,000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficiency Improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment Is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042, The •
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140,210 140,210

16



Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in-New Hampshire, Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December

2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 ' 900.000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital .improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years In
January 2026. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 178,172 121.865

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing Finance,
Authority to fund energy efficiency imp-rovements
through the Authority's Greener Homes Program.
Payment is deferred for 30 years, through August
2042. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA). 228,934 228.934

Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032.
payable in monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's
land and buildings, subject to low income housing
use restrictions for the 30 year term of the
mortgage note (NHHFA). 53,826 r

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero Interest bearing
mortgage note payable to' New Hampshire
Housing (FAF). due May 2032, payable at the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of

the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 92,058

17



Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under
the aforementioned agreement, the loan is due
upon demand with interest accrued at a rate of
11.67% for the period the funds were outstanding
(Federal Loan Home Bank). .ISO.'OdO-

8,490,42^ 8,298,788

Less current portion due within one year 216.4^- 211.313

MMMi. £8:087:475;

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2018 is as follows:

Year Ending
Mav3i Amount
2019 $ 216,438
2020 106,557
2021 108,028
2022 102,681
2023 102,148

Thereafter .7:85^:569

•Total

NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES
The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-
cancelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2022. Monthly lease payments range from $200
to $3,521. Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2018 and 2017 totaled
$176,479 and $179,178, respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May.31, 2018 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31 Aitidunt
2019 •$ 76,77^6.
2020 22.372
2021 18,977
2022 - 15:618

Total £ 133:743

18



NOTES ACCRUED COIViPENSATEP BALANCES

At May 31, 2018 and 2017, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $130,140
and $127,577, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

..Southwestem Community Services. Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing,
Inc. and SOS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing. Inc. and SOS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners of ten limited partnerships formed to
develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestem Community Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc.-have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $15,569,000 and $15,590,000' at
May 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of'approximately $41,158,000 and
$41,027,000 provides collateral on these loans at May 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

The'Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal-
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been Incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required
to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
if any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as. of May
31. 2018 and 2017.

N0TE7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31, 2018 and 2017, SCS Housing, Inc. managed
ten limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled
$322,973 and $308'448, for the years ended May 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Additionally, SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the .limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amount due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entity was $142,959 and $219,108 at May 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

19



NOTE 8 EQUITY INVESTMENT.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial Interests In the following companies:

2018 2017

Cityside Housing Associates. LP $  (9,492) $  (9,481)
Marlborough-Homes, LP 8 30

Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP (12,491) (12.477)
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP (1,715) (1,527)
Wanwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP (17) (9)
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP 222,846 222,850

Winchester Senior Housing Associates, LP ,r 53,888

Westmlll Senior Housing, LP , 90 -

Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP (31,190) (31,183)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing
Associates, LP (60,716) (60.709)
Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP , (243) (226)
Pilot Health, LLC f18:374)1. (■18.374)

^88706^ $ 142.782

SOS Housing Development, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Housing
Associates, LP, Marlborough Homes, LF{. Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Associates, LP, a .0.10% partner of Railroad-Square Senior
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner In Westmlll Senior Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2018 and 2017.

SOS Housing, Inc. Is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing:
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during the years ended May 31, 2018 and 2017.

The remaining 99.99% ownership Interest In Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP was acquired by Southwestern Community Service, Inc. during
the year ended May 31, 2018 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited
partnership Is included In the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended May 31, 2018.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Is 14.3% member of Pilot Health, LLC.

20



Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2018 and 2017, consists of the following:

2018

Total assets $ 32.782

Total liabilities 47i'461
Capital/Member's equity . '(i4!879V

Income

Expenses

Net income

81:478

$  3.235

■2017

^ 33^
"47;490

.-i14:3501:

4 84^728.

81.515'

NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN
The "Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's
discretion and totaled $281,784 and $274,815 for the years ended May 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTIQNSON^NET ASSETS,
Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes:

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund
WM Marceilo GAPS Fund
Stand Down
GAPSA/Varm Fund

Total temporarily restricted net assets

2018 2017
$  21,327 $ 38,129

12,781 14,789
4,963

•  - 118.401 100.92.1

S  153 839-

NOTE 11 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT
During the year ended May 31, 2018, the Organization realized forgiveness of
debt income in connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD"
and Community Development Finance Authority. Forgiveness of debt income
totaled $75,971 for the year ended May 31, 2018.

During the year ended May 31, 2017, the Organization realized forgiveness of
debt income in connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD
and New Hampshire Housing. Forgiveness of debt Income totaled $90,148 for
the year ended May 31, 2017.
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note 12 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During 2018, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. acquired a partnership
interest In a low-income housing limited partnership; Winchester. The amount
paid for the partnership interest was $1 and at the time of acquisition.
Southwestern Community Services. Inc. became the general partner. The
following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnership at the date
of acquisition:

Date of transfer 08/16/2018

Winchester

Cash

Security deposits
Cash-reserves

Property-net
Other assets

Total assets

Notes payable
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Partners' capital

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investment in related parties

Partners' capital transferred

$; 24,508
11,467

164;110
990;84^
'12:328

1.203.255

304,073
- 22.009.

326.082

877,173

.  j53;8881

823-2a5-

NOTE 13 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 14 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
September 17, 2018, the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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SUPPLEMENTAL.INFORMATION

(SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT)
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■SERVICES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
.FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2018

NOTE 1 BASIS-OF PRESENTATION-
The accompanying ischedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2018. The
Information In this Schedule Is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., It is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes In net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUIVIIVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT-ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported ori the ScheduleTiare reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are .recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST.RATE
Southwestem Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minlmis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION
fvlonmonetary assistance is reported In the Schedule at the fair value of the

.  commodities-received and disbursed.

NOTE 6 SUBRECIPIENTS
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
May 31, 2018.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

ilN AGCbRDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services. Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 17. 2018.

Internai Controj'Over Fttiahclai
In planning and performing oiir audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
•purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Sen/ices,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or erhployees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or cornbination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
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our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control ttiat we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Gombfiance and Other Matters ■
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance'with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Staiidards.

V

Purpose bfthls Report

The purpose of this report is soleiy to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's Internal control or on compliance". This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable
for any other purpose. o :

September 17, 2018
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANGE REQUIRED BY THE.UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Communrty Services. Inc.
Keerte,' New Hampshire

Report on Compliahce iforfEkdH Malo'r F.cderal. Prdaram
•'We have:.audited ;Southwestern. .Commuhlty' Sen/icesv; line:-, (a iNew. iHampshIre-(nonprofit
•corporatiorij :and, lelMeci ̂ -cornparijeS! compjiari^ witH'4ne; ̂ pes Of' compliance- 'requtfements
'described in.;lhe, OMBi Gomp/fanceV'Supp/emenNhat- could,%aye aVdirect ahd'material";bffecL^^ •
.each:pf Southwestern .G.omrhunity.:S.ervices;1nO.-!s'maj6ri federal,programsfoYJ^^
;3]1.:2dj8.,Southwestem,'Cpm^ lnc.''s^majQr.federaIvprograms,are Idehtifie'd'^n the
;sUmmary''pf auditors' fesults section pfrthe^ accompanying .(schedule of, findings and^ questioned
.costs,

'Management's ResDonslbilitv
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of Its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

fAudltors'^Responsibliitv
'OurResponsibility Is to-express an ioplnion-on' Compliari'ce/ifor eacH.iof. Sbuthwestefh 'Community
((Slices, Inc.'s^" major -federal programs; based on .our; (audit- -of',they types, of ̂ compliance
(mqulrements referred to ;^abpve, we/ conducted our audit of .compliance ,In ^accordance with
•jaudKmg^standards generally States of America; the standards applicable to
ifinancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the. United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations' Part 200, Uniform
.^dmlnisMti)/e: ',Re^^^^ Cost ;^nncigles. ■end. Audit' for Federal Awards,
i(Uhjf6mi'.duJdahc^ Those; standards ;Shd'iHe UnifOrmyGuida wey'plan and perform;,
the audit 'to obtain reasonable assurance abdUt;"whetKbr npncpm of,
compliance requirements referred to above that.could Kayeya difeci.Ohd',rnate'ria| e^
federal program occurred.. An audit includes rexamining;,; oh a tesT bas^^^^
Southwestern. Community, Services. Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performlhg
isuch'idther pro.cedures as'w^ considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance.

ODlriiori oh Each Malo'r Federal Program .
Jn..o;ur.ppinlpn',;Southwesterh Community .Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
cdhi'piianceTequiremehta referredrtpVaboye that could have a direct and material effect on each of
Its'major federal programs for the" year e'nded May 31, 2dl i3.
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Report on Infemal Coritrol Over Compliance'^
Management of^ Southwestern eommunity. Services, Inc. is .reiponsibie for establishing and
maintaining effective Internal control over compliance vyith the types; of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of Compliance, we cohsldered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over Compliance', with the iyp.es'of
requirements that could have a direct and mateiHa!^ .effd^.ph- e'ach; majp/ 'federal fpfii^rami to;
de'teirhihejthefauditjhg prdcedures-thar.':are.;.app^^ in the circumstan^ of:
expfessjhg an opinion on compliance (for each rnajor fed.eral'.pcogfarri <drid :tb' test-and'rep6rt;on.'
In'terhal control (qyefcompliance In a'ccbrdanci/Wi the Uriifpfm (3uidance',('bLit'n6t:fpr the purpbse,
of expressing ah dpihlon on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.- Accordlngiy.'we
do not express an opinion on the" effecliveness'"6f'Southwestern Community Services; Inci's-
internal control over compliance. ' " ' . .

A deficiency in Internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a .control
over icompliance;,does not allow managemeiitjor employees, ;ln the norrnai, course of perfprmihg:
their assigned functlbns,, to jprevent, of ''detect and: correct, noncpmpljance'vyith: a type; pf
compliance requirement .of a federal program;on a (timely, basis, A materialywaakn In internal
controrover cbmpilance is a deficiency, ;or combination of deficiencies In internal control over
compliance-' such that".therej"s aireaspnable-ppssibllM^ type pf
complianceTequirernent-of,a,federal prog not pe preyenteci; Or detected, Cpirected.bn
a '-timely b.asjs\: (A'-islgfiificbht, deficlehcy Tn] Ihterhal .wntrbl dver^-pomplian^^ br'ia
combination of deficiencies, in Internal coritror over compliance/with" a'tyjw "of" compliahce
requirement ,of a federal program: that Is less severe than a material weakness in Internal (control
oveycpmpllance, (yet.lhnpprtan^^^ to merit attention by those charged with-governance.

Our,corisjderatibri-'ofiihtemai:cOnfroi-'over compliance'.'.was.^for;(the:;limited'puipps.e described .in,.tihe-
first paragraph;of;tHis-sectibn;:and'was. not,deslgned'(to Identify -all deflclenGies In intemaf conbbP
bver;compliance:that;mlght'be^materlalLweaknesses or significant deficlend^^^
any vdeficlencie8:ln» Internal control oyer compliance that: w
However,:materiblweaknesses'may,ex^ not identiified.

The,: pujppse pT ih'Is:,'.:repprt bn Interhal.cpri^^ bve; compliance Is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of iihtemal bbnbpl byer cb^^^ the results of that testlrig; based on the
requlremehts;-(bi^m^^ this report is not suitable for any other
purpose!' ' " • - - -

i.

September 17, 2018
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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Si)iJlHWESI£BN COMMUNITY SERVICES: INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31.-2018

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS
I

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. were prepared in accordance with
GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported In the Independent Auditors' Report on internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No Instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
'Sbuthwidstem Community Services, Inc. which would be'require.d. to be reported in
;aCdprdance wK Government Auditing Sfanc(a/Ss,-were disclosed duririg-the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in Internal control over major .federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southwestern
Community Services, inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported In accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services; Low-Income Home Energy Assistance. 93.568, and Head Start, 93.600, and U.S.
Department of Agriculture; Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants,
arid Children (WIC), 10.557.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was determined to not be a low-risk audltee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUtHWEStERN CQMM'U COMPANIES

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY.3T. 2017

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported In the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Cbste for the year ended May 31,2Q17.
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1  Southwestern Communitv Services, Inc. Board of Directors - Composltion/riO.iO-J

CHESHIRE COUNTY SULLIVAN COUNTY

CONSTITUENT

SECTOR

Anne Seattle

Newport Service Organization

Mary Lou Huffling
Fall Mountain Emergency Food Shelf
Alstead Friendly Meals

Brianna TrombI

Head Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

open

,  j

PRIVATE

SECTOR

Elaine Amer, Clerk/Treasurer

Amer Electric Company (retired)

David Edkins

Town of Walpole

Kevin Watterson, Chair

Clarke Companies (retired)

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education •

River Valley Community College '

PUBLIC

SECTOR

Jay Kahn
State Senator, District 10

Derek Ferland ,

Sullivan County Manager I

i

j

i

Beth Fox

Assistant City Manager/
Human Resources Director

City of Keene

open
1

{

1



NH Office of Strategic Intitiatives

Agency Name: Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

program Name:.WAP PY20

Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel

Annual Salary Of Key
Administrative

Personnel

Percentage of i

\  -Salary Paid By ;
Contract

SSI
John A. Manning, Chief Executive Officer $107,016 i  0.00%

Beth Daniels. Chief Operating Officer $65,000 '  ' ■ 10.00%

Gabriel Leonard, Energy Conservation Manager $45,760 70.00%

1

> m'i
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John A. Manning

Summary :Over 30 years of experience with non-profit organizations, as t>oth an
outside auditor and presently Chief Financiat.Officer.of a'large
community action agency.

EsqwHoncb 2014 Southwestern Community Services Inc.

Keene. NH

Chlaf Executtvo Officer

-Responsibl^for overail supervision. ma'nagernVnt, monitoring and fiscai
review of Community Action Agency.social serJrice prpgrams-prcviding

- services to low-incprne, elderly,'and:hand(^pped residents of Sullivari
and Cheshire Counties. New Hampshire.

1996-^1.4 Southwestern Communiiy/Services Inc.
•Keene. NH

'Chlof Flnanci^ Officer

Overe^ all. f^l functions for a community'fadiw agency proyidhg
^ser^s'to low and nvDderate incom^individi^i^PKiranis'
Start; Fuel As^'sQhce. and. mUitif^ affc^abie If^ing proje^.
Supervise a sla'fliof 7. with an.agen^, budgel-ofiover S-l3.000;000.;Ais<S
ovei^ees agency property management;'department, which manages
over ̂ .uhits bf affordable bousing.

1985-1995 KeeneSiaieCoHege" Keene.^NH

;Ac(JunctPrafosftor

Taught evening accounting classes for therr continuing educalton
program.

1978-1990 John A; Manning^ 'Keene, NH

iCeftjriod Public Accountant
Piwi^:vp!^cift3Wuhtir>9'^8efVicietSitp.:£^^
;^uid&Tig::m^^;non-ip^l^^^^ rp^pmi^'certiried 'audfa'i^^
several clents; induding Head and.odief bbn^xofit clienls.

1975.1978

StafT Accountant

Kostln andCo.,CPA''s West-Hartford. Ct;

Performed'ail aspects of publlc.accountlrigTor mediufh'Stzed abcounlinrg
firm. Audited large numOer of privalely heid and hbri-profitidiants.

Education

1971-1975 University of Mass.

BiS. Business Administration in Accounting

American institute of Certilied Public Accountants

Amhersl. Ma.

Organizations NH Society of Certified Public Accountants



Beth Daniels

Experience.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Chief Operating Officer 03/2016-Present
•  Responsible for all day-to-day program operations of the agency
•  Supervise Program Directors, including WIC, Energy, and Housing Stabilization
•  Ensure that all stale and federal regulations are followed while those in need receive a smooth delivery

of service

Director of Energy and Employment Programs 10/2008 - 12/2016
• Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor,

Senior Energy Assistance, Weatherization, HRRP, CORE, and Assurance 16 as well as the employment
programs Workplace Success, Work Experience Program, and WIA.

Workforce Development Director 11/2006-10/2008
•  Supervise, direct, coach, and encourage staff of six within four programs
•  Collaborate with agency staff, community members and state contract holders to achieve conamon goals,

including agency name recognition and program success
•  Perfonn all SCS Program Director tasks including PPRs and budget management

Families @Work Employment Specialist 03/2006- 11/2006
• Managed a caseload of fifty (50) clients throughout the Keene, Claremont, Concord, and Nashua areas
• Worked closely witli staff from Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and Southern New Hampshire

Services " ■

•  Gained a strong working knowledge of all SCS programs for referral purposes

Second Start, Concord, NH

Career Development Specialist 11/2004-03/2006
•  Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building exercises
• Assisted participants with barrier resolution and the job search process
• Maintained participant records and completed reporting requir^ents
•  Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and learning styles

Nina's Family Daycare, Swanzey, NH 10/2003-11/2004
Daycare Provider
•  Responsible for meal planning, payment records, supplies, and activities
• Acquired CPR & First Aid certification

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Case Manager, Homeless Services 09/2002 - 10/2003
•  Responsible for all dally operations of housing program, rules, and regulations
•  Completed weekly and monthly progress reports
•  Coordinated house meetings, workshops, case conferences, and life skills classes

Case Manager, Welfare-to-Work 05/2000 - 09/2002
•  Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clients
•  Gained working knowledge of Department of Health & Human Services, Immigration & Naturalization

Seivices, community agencies, and SCS



Education ahd Traihirig

Results Oriented Management & Accountability (ROMA)

Grant Writing Workshop

Cheshire County

Nonviolent Crisis Intervention

Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc.

Leadership Training

Tad Dwyer Consulting

Criticism St Discipline Skills for Managers
CareerTrack

How to Supervise People
CareerTrack

Career Development Facilitator Training
National Career Development Association
}20-hour NCDA training

Certified Workforce Development Specialist
National Association of Workforce Development Professionals

Infection Control & Bloodbome Pathogens
Home Health Care

Bachelor of Arts in Human Services

Franklin Pierce College
Graduated cum laude

2016-2017

05/2012

2012

2010-2011

11/2007

n/2007

09/2005

06/2005

01/2003

05/2002

References A vailable



Gabriel Leonard

Prbfessibhal SurhmaW

Strong client services, employee management, organizational, and problem solving skills in a fast-paced
environment, seeking employment with a company of shared standards and values.

Employment History

All Seasons Construction Corp. (Springfield, VT) Assistant Project Manager Nov2015-Present

•  Responsible for supporting Project Manager in the planning, management direction, project completion,
client satisfaction, and financial outcome of assigned construction projects.

•  Create estimates within Sage project management software:
•  Supports the Project Manager functions such as monthly forecasts, estimating, and budgeting.
•  Assists in ensuring that all documentation meets internal standards, procedures and specifications.
•  Ensures good, transparent and effective reporting and documentation.

■ • Delivers all documents in a timely manneHso that progress can be fully communicated..
•  Communicates with Site Manager for site project documentations.
•  Responsible for verifying blueprints and construction process on multiple build phases.

New Hampshire Employment Security (Claremont. NH) DVOP Employment Specialist Jan2015-Nov2015

•  Disabled Veterans" Outreach Program (DVOP) Specialist facilitated workforce services for veterans,
others eligible and employers.

•  Provided specialized workforce services for veterans, especially veterans with barriers to employment,
• I.e., job development services for veterans, refer veterans to employment/training opportunities, provide
counseling/guidance, and assist veterans with other workforce services (resume assistance, labor

. market information, job search workshops, one-stop career center orientation, etc.).

HURLEY OFFICE SOLUTIONS (Randolph, VT) Project Manager Nov 2009-Sep2014

•  Provided site supervision on a diverse range of commercial office Installation projects. Tailored custom
solutions to customer needs.

•  Managed, hired and trained a team of seven employees. Created and implemented a customer service
standard for the organization.

•  Developed relationships with third party sales representatives to sell Hurley Office Solutions' services.
•  Negotiated bids, responded to RFPs and successfully closed contracts.
•  Analyzed the business and marketplace and created a strategic plan for the organization that included

new marketing, human resources, job site and documentation plans.

BASIC PSA (Johnstown, PA/ Kennebunk, ME) Snubber Removal & Reinstallation Technician

VC Summer Nuclear Power Station Oct 2012 - Nov 2012
Susquehanna Nuclear Power Station Mar 2012 - Apr 2012

Evaluated, removed & reinstalled nuclear snubbers, mechanical and hydraulic shock absorbers, to
prevent unwanted activity during scheduled power outages paying close attention to all safety protocols
and procedures.

IBZ CONTRACTING (Spring Valley, NY) Heavy Equipment Operator Jul 2008 - Aug 2009

•  Managed heavy equipment for a waterfront restoration and worked closely with EPA inspectors and
project engineers.

FULLTIME MANAGEMENT (New York. NY) Property Manager Jan 2008 - May 2008



•  Managed multiple residential properties, with responsibilities including general upkeep, small repairs
and tenant relations.

FINESTKIND HANDYCRAFTSMEN (Kitsap County, WA) Proprietor Dec 2004 - Jan 2007

t  Coordinated contracts for construction, successfully managed crew and contracts to ensure timely and
satisfactory completion of projects.

•  Provided services including finish carpentry, masonry, drywall, interior / exterior painting, residential
electrical and plumbing, landscaping, roofing, and decking.

UNITED STATES NAVY (Bremerton, WA & San Diego, CA) Nov 2002 - Dec 2007
USS John C Stennis. CVN 74, Kitsap Navy Base & Coronado Navy Base ■

Aviation Ordnance Specialist Supervisor Nov 2004 - Dec 2007
Aviation Ordnance Specialist Nov 2002 - Nov 2004

•  Instructed, supervised and evaluated the performance of 60 personnel and oversaw $1 billion plus of
highly sensitive weapons and navy specific heavy equipment.

•  Communicated effectively in diverse and hostile environments, both with personnel and upper
management under stressful conditions.

Education

GRANITE STATE COLLEGE (Concord, NH) B.S. Business Management, GRA 3.72 magna cum laude 2014

CPR CERTIFIED NATIONAL HEART ASSOCIATION 2014

ASSOCIATED TRAINING SERVICES (Portsrtiouth, NH) Heavy Equipment Operation School 2008

NAVY LEADERSHIP PROGRAM (USS John C Stennis, CVN 74) 2004




